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About Us

Growing stronger with time

Shangri-la Development Bank, a prominent
national-level development bank in Nepals
banking sector, celebrates a commendable
19-year legacy of excellence. Established in 2061
B.S, the bank has consistently distinguished itself
in meeting the diverse financial needs of its
clientele.

The bank's board comprises distinguished
individuals possessing extensive experience and
expertise in banking, finance sectors & more.

With its head office situated in Baluwatar, the
development bank diligently serves its customers
through an expansive network of 112 branches and
30 ATMs spanning the nation.

Shangri-la Development Bank offers an extensive
array of banking products and financial services
catering to customers and clients across its
branch network. Its customer-centric offerings
have consistently propelled our company's
exponential growth.

The continuing trust of our esteemed patrons has
forged a familial bond, uniting over 500 thousand
customers and approximately 800  staff
members. Bolstered by a paid-up capital of NPR.
3.268 billion, deposits totaling NPR. 52.51 billion, and
loans amounting to NPR. 42.09 billion, we stand as
a leading force in the development banking
sector.

We remain committed in our pursuit of
incorporating the latest technological
advancements in the banking and financial
arena, delivering them to our customers and
clients through Digital Shangri-la. The expanding
popularity of financial technology and its
adoption heralds the transition toward a more
cashless society, and we are poised to embrace
and provide for this paradigm shift.

Promoting financial inclusivity stands as a pivotal
focus for us, with a concerted emphasis on
extending our banking services to the rural
localities, recognizing the instrumental role of
financial services in channeling rural economies
into formal avenues.
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The bank is deeply committed to drive economic
development within the nation and actively
contributes to society through an array of
corporate social responsibility initiatives.

Originating as a regional development bank with
a shared vision of amalgamating and expanding
two development banks into a larger entity, we
successfully ascended to the status of a
national-level development bank. Furthermore,
the journey continued as Shangri-la Development
Bank later acquired an additional development
bank, solidifying its position as a unified entity
formed through the wunion of three distinct
development banks, marking a significant
milestone in our 19-year journey.

Our vision is to strive to become the leading bank
in the financial sector

We have a mission to make financial services
accessible in each and every part of the country

Our objective is to stand-out to provide the best
financial service by enhancing the capacity of
employees & creating the best working place in
the entire banking industry.
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For Society

Value Created for Stakeholders

Number of Subsidy
Loan Clients
000

1,588 T

TAX

[S
CSR I
CSR
Tax Paid

Corporate Social
Responsibility e
NPR 2.07 Million A LA

1] 2 Branches

For Customer & Clients
@

Number of branches

Mobile Banking Users

96,738 Active Users
513,708 Customers

58,219 additional customers in FY 079/080 .

Numbers of ATMs

NPR 42.08 Billion

Loans and Advances

3.20% decrease in FY 079/080 @

Debit Card Users

NPR 52.51Billion
Deposit

0.58% increment in FY 079/080 ®
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For Investors

20\

5.263% NPR 7.30

BILLION
Dividend

Revenue

NPR 4.48

BILLION
Shareholder's Fund

NPR 270 NPR 58.65

MILLION BILLION

Net Profit Balance Sheet Size

NPR 332

Market
Value of Share

NPR 8.28 ek

) Return on Equity
Earnings Per Share

NPR 137.22 NPELL!02.52

Net Worth Per Share Market
Capitalization

For Employee

Employment Trainings

Opportunity Conducted
241

Training Beneficiaries

4,372 People

799 In-house staffs
236 Outsourced staffs
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Message from the Chairman

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our regulator, esteemed customers, shareholders, well-wishers,
team Shangri-la and everyone involved in the journey of Shangri-la Development Bank.

During my first term as a Chairman, | am proud to share that despite the economic challenges impacting the
banking sector, we are steering the bank successfully into its 19th year. The bank's vision, mission, and
objectives are strategically aligned to meet customer expectations. We aim to achieve this by providing
top-notch value-added products and services, taking a forefront position in fostering prosperity and
development within our community, staying well within the professional ethics & guidelines provided by Nepal
Rastra Bank.

In the fiscal year 2079/80, we achieved significant milestones with the balance sheet reaching Nepalese
Rupees 58.65 billion and a net profit of Nepalese Rupees 270 million with the Earnings per share of Nepalese
Rupees 8.28.

Moving ahead, our dedication remains unwavering as we actively collaborate with the management to drive
continuous improvement for the betterment of the institution. This commitment is poised to bring benefits to
all stakeholders involved.

| call upon all Board members and employees to contribute their best through ideas and support, ensuring
that our bank continues to grow and maintain high standard of reputation in the years ahead.

Thank you for your trust and partnership.

Warm Regards,
Ujjwal Satyal
Chairman

19™ ANNUAL REPORT




&

Aifdien Setciudiec dd fo1.

TN [EEBTRISHT SIETR
(AT O FFATE ‘@ ATHRT IAHT AT GEAT)

Message from the Chief Executive Officer

As we celebrate the 19th year of Shangri-la Development Bank, | reflect on our journey with gratitude towards our dedicated Board
of Directors, Promoters, & Team Members, whose unwavering commitment has been instrumental in our continued growth.

Over the past few years, we have achieved commendable progress in terms of business expansion, both in deposits and loans.
However, it is important to acknowledge that due to capital adequacy considerations, our growth trajectory did not unfold as
initially planned. Nevertheless, we have demonstrated resilience, achieving significant growth in deposits in the fiscal year 2079/80.
The preceding year proved to be a challenging one for the entire banking sector in Nepal. The global economic landscape, coupled
with domestic circumstances, posed significant obstacles. Liquidity constraints and adverse international conditions prompted us
to adopt a more conservative lending approach, impacting our returns to shareholders to some extent.

In the past five fiscal years, from Shrawan 1, 2075 to Ashadh end, 2080, our loan portfolio has touched NPR. 42.09 billion from NPR.19.47
Billion, marking a notable increase. These five years have been marked by notable growth in the Nepali financial market sector.

In Nepal, the skyrocketing fuel prices and an inflation rate of 7.74% has added to the economic challenges. The repercussions of the
global economic landscape were keenly felt, with contractions in tourism and remittances, a decline in foreign exchange reserves,
import restrictions, reduced revenues, and a downsized budget.

This economic downturn placed additional strain on the banking sector, leading to increased deposit rates in response to a
persistent liquidity crisis. Unfortunately, this also triggered an uncontrolled surge in lending interest rates, causing difficulties for
businesses and individuals, and straining relationships with banks.

While recent months have shown a modest improvement in economic indicators, a full recovery is yet to be realized. The road
ahead for the banking sector remains uncertain, and we must proceed with caution, collaborating closely with regulators,
stakeholders, depositors, and lenders.

In the present scenario, we are encouraged by the positive changes taking place in the financial sector. Nevertheless, Nepal Rastra
Bank's projection of a credit growth of 1.5% in their monetary policy serves as a reminder of the potential hurdles that lie ahead. We
remain committed to aligning our growth plans with this projection, provided we receive positive support from the market in terms
of liquidity and capital adequacy.

In the realm of digital banking, we are dedicated to further enhancing our offerings and promoting financial literacy. This
commitment reflects our vision for a more inclusive and technologically advanced banking experience for all.

Our focus for the upcoming year will be on enhancing the quality of loans, increasing savings deposits, fortifying our human
resources capacity and creating a robust system. We are committed to offering improved digital banking services, exploring
partnerships with other stakeholders to enhance the digital experience for our valued customers.

We extend our heartfelt thanks to our shareholders for their unwavering trust, even in these challenging economic times. Your faith
on us is a cornerstone of our motivation to strive for even greater returns in the future, maintaining a healthy balance within and
outside the bank. As always, we deeply appreciate the ongoing guidance and support from Nepal Rastra Bank, which has been
instrumental in enhancing our professionalism & growth.

Warm Regards,
Suyog Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors have been dedicatedly striving to manage the development bank in the interest of
depositors, customers, and general shareholders for the long-term stability, ethical conduct, and strategic
direction, while ensuring compliance with regulations and accountability to stakeholders and also
prioritizing comprehensive risk management of the development bank. The Board assures not to interfere in
the day-to-day operations of the business to ensure the maintenance of proper corporate governance
within the development bank.

The Board of Directors comprise of six members headed by Chairman, Mr. Ujjwal Satyal. The competent and
experienced directors play a pivotal role in promoting effective governance and steering the management
towards realizing the organization's vision, mission, and objectives. There were 28 board meetings held in the
fiscal year.

Details of Board of Directors of the development bank is given below:

Name Designation Standing Committee Membership

Mr. Ujjwal Satyal Chairman =

Mr. Sushil Kaji Baniya Director Employee Service Benefit Committee

Mr. Sujan Siddhi Bajracharya Director Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ganga Sagar Dhakal Director Audit Committee

Mrs. Lisa Sherchan Director Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee
Mr. Naresh Dhungana Director Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee
Mr Sujan Babu Adhikari Secretary =

Mr. Ujjwal Satyal

Term of Office: He was appointed as the Chairman of the development bank on 17th
Chaitra, 2079 (31st March, 2023).

Education: Master of Tourism Studies

Industry Experience: He was one of the directors of Shangri-la Development Bank
from 2071 B.S. to 2075 B.S. He has work experience of Nepal Academy of Tourism and
Hotel Management (NATHM), a public hospitality college as a Principal with total
work experience as an educator for 29 years. He is a Hospitality Subject Committee
chairperson of Kathmandu University (KU) and Lumbini Buddhist University (LBU). He
has also worked as Training Advisor for UNDP and has experience of working in
various Hotels in managerial role. He is the proprietor of Creative Décor.

Mr. Sushil Kaji Baniya

Term of Office: He was re-appointed as a director of the development bank on 17th
Chaitra, 2079 (3Ist March, 2023). He is the Chair of Employee Service Benefit
Committee.

Education: Master of Laws (LLM) in Business and International Trade Law and
Master’'s Degree in Arts.

Industry Experience: He has 14 years of professional experience as a legal consultant
in various multi-national and national companies/ in court litigations and in the area
of legal research. He's currently engaged as an advocate at Ace Legal Service.

19™ ANNUAL REPORT
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Mr. Sujan Siddhi Bajracharya

Term of Office: He was appointed as a director of the development bank on 17th L
Chaitra, 2079 (31st March, 2023). He is the Chair of Risk Management Committee.

Education: Master of Business Studies and Master in Science of Information
Technology.

Industry Experience: He is a managing director at Nepal Data System Pvt Ltd. and
also working as an IT consultant since 2009 A.D. Having almost a decade of working
experience in commercial banks of Nepal in IT Department, he is also an IT
entrepreneur.

Mr. Ganga Sagar Dhakal

Term of Office: : He was re-appointed as a director of the development bank on 17th
Chaitra, 2079 (31st March, 2023). He is one of the members of Audit Committee.

Education: Master in Humanities & Social Science.

Industry Experience: He has worked for more than 26 years as a Gazetted
Third-Class Officer and Second-Class Officer in Government of Nepal.

Mrs. Lisa Sherchan

Term of Office: : She was re-appointed as a director of the development bank on 17th
Chaitra, 2079 (315t March, 2023). She is the Chair of Assets Money Laundering
Prevention Committee.

Education: Master of Science in Economics and Business Administration.

Industry Experience: : She is a managing director at 360 Education, Study Abroad
Consultant in Nepal. She has been working in the field of study abroad consulting for
over 12 years. She has acquired certifications of USATC and QEAC. She also has
working experience at Goldman Sach Asset Management (GSAM) in Bangalore as
GSAM-Compliance Officer and Goldman Sach Asset Management in New York as
GSAM Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Officer.

Mr. Naresh Dhungana

Term of Office: : He was appointed as a director of the development bank on 17th
Chaitra, 2079 (31st March, 2023). He is the Chair of Audit Committee and one of the
members of Risk Management Committee.

Education: Chartered Accountancy, Master in Business Studies, LLB

Industry Experience: : He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant by profession from the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). He has more than 15 years of
professional experience in the audit field. He is the proprietor of N.D. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants.

Committee of Directors

In order to make well-informed decisions in the best interests of the development bank, the Board has
established various committees. These committees have been formed as per the Unified Directives of the
Nepal Rastra Bank and work as per the terms of reference provided therein. Following are the Committees of
Directors of the Bank.

Audit Committee

The development bank has an independent Internal Audit Department under this committee. The Internal
Audit Department of the development bank operates as an independent appraisal function, responsible for
scrutinizing and assessing the bank's operations. By implementing a structured and rigorous approach, it
aids the development bank in achieving its objectives while enhancing risk management, internal controls,
and the governance process.

During the year, nine meetings of Audit Committee were held.

19™ ANNUAL REPORT
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee helps to assist the BoD to frame and implement robust policies and
framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued by the regulatory authority. The
primary role of the committee is to ensure that the development bank has a comprehensive risk
management framework that align with the risk appetite/tolerance limit, facilitating effective risk
management throughout the development bank. The committee is also responsible for monitoring the
effectiveness of the risk management framework and making recommendations for improvement. The
committee on periodic basis reports the risk profile of the development bank, including policies and
standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy to the BoD.

During the year, five meetings of Risk Management Committee were held.

Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee

The committee ensures that the development bank complies with all the provisions under Asset (Money)
Laundering Prevention Act, Asset (Money) Laundering Prevention Rule & the Directives on AML/CFT issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank. It reviews the adequacy of the resources (including information technology tools) to
identify, measure & mitigate the money laundering concerns and subsequently report these findings to the
BoD. Furthermore, the committee evaluates the current methodologies, policies, processes, and other
aspects, and identifies the need for enhancements to promptly detect various money laundering risks, also
conveying this information to the Board.

During the year four meetings of Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee were held.

Employee Service Benefit Committee

The Employee Service Benefit Committee within the development bank focuses on identifying and
addressing employee-related policies and staying abreast of current trends, which encompasses changes
in legislation and the improvement of benefit programs. This proactive approach ensures the bank's
competitiveness in the market.

Additionally, the Committee evaluates and suggests the Human Resources strategy to the BoD for approval.
This strategy includes essential HR objectives, plans, and workforce needs, as well as norms for recruitment,
promotions, selections, transfers, and placements. The Committee also oversees the execution of these
strategies.

During the year five meetings of Employee Service Benefit Committee were held.
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Information Related to the Development Bank

Name of Development Bank

Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Type of Company

Public Limited Company

Registered Address

Baluwatar, Kathmandu

Date of Registration and Registration Number in Company Registrar’s Office

2060/10/14, 871/060/61

Date of Approval for Business Operations from Nepal Rastra Bank

2060/10/23

Date of Operation

2061/07/13

Working Territory

National Level

Permanent Account Number

301655248

Capital Structure
Authorized Share Capital
Issued Share Capital
Paid up Share Capital

NPR. 5,000,000,000.00
NPR. 3,267,591,716.71
NPR. 3,267,591,716.71

Shareholding Structure
Promoter Shareholder
Public Shareholder

51 %
49 %

Number of Shareholders

527 promoter shareholders
24,361 public shareholders

Number of Branch at the Time of Preparation of Annual Book

112

Total Number of Employees

799 (348 female employees)

Share Listing Date

2067/10/11

Net worth (including proposed dividend)

NPR. 4,483,857,318.84

Net worth per share (including proposed dividend)

NPR. 137.22

Total Deposit

NPR. 52,509,426,468.79

Total Loans and Advances

NPR. 42,086,678,205.58

Net Profit NPR. 270,412,816.96
Earnings Per Share (before adjustment of bonus share) NPR. 8.28
Capital Adequacy Ratio 1241 %
Credit Deposit Ratio 79.03%
Non-Performing Loan Percentage 3.16 %
Liquidity Ratio 27.26 %
Interest Spread 4.59 %
Number of Deposit Customers 513,708
Number of Loan Clients 22,483

Statutory Auditor

Ranjeev & Associates, Chartered Accountants
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RANJEEV &
ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHANGRI-LA DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shangri-la Development Bank Lid. (referred to as
the “Bank’"), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July I6,
2023), the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
Financial Position of the Bank as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards [NFRS].

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on, Auditing [NSA]. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit cvndence we have obtamed is sufﬁc:cnt and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our andit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

S. No. Key Audit Matters Auditor Response

a) Interest Income: Our audit approach included clear
The interest income of the bank has been understanding of the Corc Banking Software

recognized on accrual basis and following the
Interest income guidelines issued by NRB on
2019. The Guidelines specify the conditions
for collateral testing in case the overdue last
for 3-12 months and reversal of "accrued
interest on overdue more than 12 months.

Furthermore, the guidelines have specified
conditions for collective impairment of the
loan as well. In"case of improper apgiication
of the guidelines and determination of the Fair
Value of the collateral, it imposes risk on part
of interest income. Thus, we have considered
it as the key audit matter.

(CBS) of the bank i.e., how the interest income
is " daily accrued regarding the loans and
-advances. Furthermore, we have relied on the
-engineers® valuation of the collateral for
determination of fair value regarding collateral
testing.

Also, we have test checked the interest income
booking with manual computation and no
deviation was observed.

Further, we have test checked the collateral’s
fair value as per the NRB-Income recognition
guidelines.

qu 3t arftie wfeaee
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S. No.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor Response

b)

Investment in Loans & Advances:

Investment in loans and advances comprises
of loans and advances provided to the
borrowers via various products of the Bank.
The valuation of aforesaid securities has been
done in compliance with NFRS 9, Carve-Out
issued by the Accounting Standards Board
Nepal and Directive No. 2 & 3 of NRB
Unified Directive 2079. The investments are
recognized at Amortized Cost in the financial
statements less impairment losses.

Our audit approach regarding assessment of
investment in loans and advances was done on
risk-based sampling basis.

‘'We verified outstanding impairment status of

loans & advances with reference to the NRB
directives, NFRS and Carve-Out issued for
current year which stated that impairment shall
be done at higher for impairment provision as
per NRB directives or NFRS.

We verified provisioning of the loans and
advances based on ageing on the test check
basis as on 16.07.2023 and the provisions are
adequately made.

<)

Creation of reserve for redemption of
debenture

The reserve for redemption of debenture is an
appropriation of profit. The Bank has not
appropriated its profit for redemption of
debenture in the current fiscal year which is in
consideration with the mandatory legislation.
It will also increase the appropriations in the
coming years and the same has been
considered as a Key Audit Matter.

Our audit approach regarding assessment of
need of appropriation to redemption reserve
was done based on both regulatory and
relevant criteria. Bank has obtained the
necessary approval from the regulatory bodies
including the Securities Exchange Board of
Nepal (SEBON) for the said matter.

d)

Investment Valuation, identification and
impairment:

Investment of the bank comprises of
investment in government bonds, T-bills,
development bonds and investment in quoted
and unquoted securities. The valuation of
aforesaid securities has been done in
compliance with NFRS 9 and Directive No. 8
of NRB Unified Directive 2079. The
investment in government bonds & T-Bills
has been done on amortized cost and rest have
been valued through FVTOCI.

Given the varieties of treatments
recommended for valuation of investment
based on nature of cash flow, the business
model adopted, complexity of calculation and
significance of amount involved in such
investments, same has been considered as
Key Audit Matter. '

Our audit approach regarding investment of
bank is based on NRB Directives & NFRS
issued by the Accounting Standards Board of
Nepal. : :

For the investment valuation that are done at
amortized cost, we checked the effective
interest rate and amortization schedule on test
basis.

For investment valued through OCI i.e., for
quoted investment, we relied on last
transaction price (LTP) in NEPSE as on
16.07.2023 for fair value indication and for the
unquoted investment, the fair value has been
taken at the rate which determines its nearest
fair value significance.

Further, the income and bonus shares have
been cross verified from bank statements and
Demat Statement of the bank, wherever
applicable. :

Page 2 of 4
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S. No. Key Audit Matters Auditor Response

€) Information Technology: Our audit approach regarding information
technology of the bank was based upon the

digitally stored and ions are carried }sn;]':)erén;hon Technology Guidelines, 2012
out digitally/electronically in today’s Y NRB.

scenario, we have considered information | We verified interest income and expense
technology status of the bank as our Key | booking regarding loan and deposits on the test
Audit Matter. . basis with the CBS of the bank.

We relied on the IT audit conducted by the
bank.

Since most of the information of the bank is

We verified provisioning of the loans and
advances based on ageing on the test check
basis as on 16.07.2023.

Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Report, Director's Report and Chairman's Statement but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Such
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other inforination identified above when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. '

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting
process. .

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement whether caused due to fraud or error, and to issue auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Page 3 of 4
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Obtain an understandmg of internal control rélevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate follo“&ng matters in accordance with the reguirements of
NRB Directives, Companies. Act, 2063 (updated 2074), BAFIA, 2073 and other regulatory
requircments: -

22

CA. jeev Shrestha
Proprieior
Ranjeev & Associates

We have obtained all the information and the explanations, which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as :equ.ired by law have been kept by the Bank.

The Statement of Financial Positicn, the Statemént of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Bank.

Returns received from the branch offices of the Bank were adequate for the purpose of our
audit though the statements are independently not audited.

The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provisions for possible impairment of assets of the
bank are adequate considering the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and from
our examination of the books of accounts of the Bank; we have not come across any case
where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the Bank have acted contrary to the
provisions of law, or commitied any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the
Bank and violated Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner, as would
Jjeopardize the interest and security of the Bank, its shareholders and its depositors.

The business of the Bank has been conducted satisfactorlly and operaled within its jurisdiction
and has been functioning as per NRB Directives.

Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 231020CA00494qHOTY

Place: Kathmandu
Date; October 20, 2023
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
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Amount in NPR

Note As at 16 July 2023 As at 16 July 2022
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 4,200,418,657.77 6,151,424,466.95
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 2,034,451,834.21 1,450,383,702.61
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - -
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 4.6 2,225,366,025.31 2,907,339,925.24
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 39,861,312,180.28 40,570,944,508.72
Investment securities 4.8 9,020,303,210.58 7,370,136,176.98
Current tax assets 4.9 64,484,139.78 33,492,765.16
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in associates 411 - -
Investment property 4.12 124,315,928.20 157,077,355.01
Property and equipment 4.13 704,286,434.13 768,852,595.19
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 10,336,994.97 5,127,981.55
Deferred tax assets 4.15 46,418,693.77 54,454 ,558.45
Other assets 4.16 358,267,345.08 353,183,641.63
Total Assets 58,649,961,444.08 59,822,417,677.49
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions’ 417 1,941,704,603.25 3,429,749,960.53
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - 1,744,042,277.00
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 - -
Deposits from customers 4.20 50,567,721,865.54 48,775,395,145.94
Borrowing 4.21 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 4.22 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 - -
Other liabilities 4.23 910,110,246.64 938,140,086.75
Debt securities issued 4.24 746,567,409.80 746,285,578.30
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total Liabilities 54,166,104,125.23 55,633,613,048.52
Equity
Share capital 4.26 3,267,591,716.72 3,010,669,662.01
Share premium -
Retained earnings 202,296,590.48 270,444,268.11
Reserves 4.27 1,013,969,011.65 907,690,698.84
Total equity attributable to equity holders 4,483,857,318.85 4,188,804,628.97
Non-controlling interest - -
Total Equity 4,483,857,318.85 4,188,804,628.97
Total Liabilities and Equity 58,649,961,444.08 59,822,417,677.49
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 1,548,853,835.97 1,535,328,771.84

Net assets value per share

137.22

139.13

Lisa Sherchan
Director

Hem Bahadur KC
In charge- Accounts & Finance

Suyog Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer

Naresh Dhungana
Director

Ganga Sagar Dhakal
Director

Sujan Siddhi Bajracharya
Director

Sushil Kaji Baniya
Director

Ujjwal Satyal
Chairman

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 20 October 2023

As per our report of even date
CA. Ranjeev Shrestha

Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income
Net interest, fee and commission income
Net trading income

Other operating income

Total operating income
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses
Net operating income

Operating expense

Personnel expenses

Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortization
Operating Profit

Non-operating income
Non-operating expense

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax Income / Expenses
Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Hem Bahadur KC
In charge- Accounts & Finance

Ganga Sagar Dhakal
Director Director

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 20 October 2023

B

Sujan Siddhi Bajracharya

Amount in NPR

Note Current Year Previous Year
4.29 7,127,467,053.45 5,544,897,226.29
4.30 5,335,842,243.93 3,853,654,742.57
1,791,624,809.52 1,691,242,483.72
4.31 166,633,842.24 206,529,193.16
4.32 17,743,175.64 14,539,960.31
148,890,666.60 191,989,232.85
1,940,515,476.12 1,883,231,716.57
4.33 - -
4.34 1,827,223.97 19,807,798.43
1,942,342,700.09 1,903,039,515.00
4.35 533,455,587.91 159,952,997.75
1,408,887,112.18 1,743,086,517.25
4.36 575,961,701.85 588,651,012.32
4.37 289,332,168.79 277,513,728.13
4.38 143,205,797.52 135,675,983.85
400,387,444.02 741,245,792.95
4.39 608,045.89 1,601,256.95
4.40 (5,828,054.39) (2,300,985.52)
395,167,435.52 740,546,064.37
4.41 124,754,618.56 213,372,401.42

Suyog Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer

134,335,715.65
(9,581,097.10)

218,871,301.35
(5,498,899.92)

270,412,816.96

527,173,662.95

270,412,816.96

527,173,662.95

270,412,816.96

527,173,662.95

8.28
8.28

Naresh Dhungana
Director

Sushil Kaji Baniya
Director

17.51
17.51

Lisa Sherchan
Director

Ujjwal Satyal
Chairman

As per our report of even date
CA. Ranjeev Shrestha

Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gain/(loss) on revaluation

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign
operation)

Income tax relating to above items

Reclassification of Profit/Loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per
equited method

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the year

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

270,412,816.96

58,723,205.92

(17,616,961.78)

527,173,662.95

(52,050,406.77)

15,615,122.03

41,106,244.14

(36,435,284.74)

41,106,244.14

(36,435,284.74)

311,519,061.11

490,738,378.21

311,519,061.11

490,738,378.21

311,519,061.11

490,738,378.21

Hem Bahadur KC Suyog Shrestha Naresh Dhungana

In charge- Accounts & Finance Chief Executive Officer Director

Ganga Sagar Dhakal Sujan Siddhi Bajracharya Sushil Kaji Baniya
Director Director Director

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 20 October 2023
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Lisa Sherchan
Director

Ujjwal Satyal
Chairman

As per our report of even date
CA. Ranjeev Shrestha

Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount in NPR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Fees and other income received

Dividend received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid
Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

Current Year

Previous Year

6,498,203,451.81
168,128,133.60

(5,257,109,950.44)
(17,743,175.64)
(604,832,545.26)
(291,677,137.31)

5,215,029,254.85
209,485,189.55

(3,802,043,725.52)
(14,539,960.31)
(565,487,181.83)
59,566,272.78

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and

[ 494,968,776.76 1,102,009,849.52
liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (584,068,131.60) 39,428,542.83
Placement with bank and financial institutions - 5,647,187.75

Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings
Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties

Interest received
Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

691,265,570.45
280,038,222.69
(4,801,871.96)

182,523,459.24
(7,548,613,748.05)
(216,023,969.64)

382,433,789.58

(7,537,138,527.87)

(1,488,045,357.28)
(1,744,042,277.00)
1,792,326,719.61

2,377,457,255.39
993,578,505.98
6,978,045,105.29

(1,439,760,914.67)

10,349,080,866.66

(562,358,348.33)

3,913,952,188.31

(165,327,090.27)

(242,640,915.33)

(727,685,438.60)

3,671,311,272.98

(1,601,217,296.04)
9,773,468.36
(80,830,409.39)
1,469,145.10
(8,138,343.31)

32,761,426.81
509,653,699.00
963,490.59
(1,135,564,818.89)

(2,931,035,794.43)
13,922,037.26
(517,199,425.17)
2,001,259.00
(2,959,458.70)

(157,077,355.01)

245,750,161.83
2,921,702.27
(3,343,676,872.94)
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities
Repayment of debt securities
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities
Receipt from issue of shares
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

(AT TG FhaTE @ TR T I )

Current Year

Amount in NPR

Previous Year

(13,522,213.40)
(74,233,338.30)

746,285,578.30

(14,405,118.00)

(87,755,551.70)

731,880,460.30

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,951,005,809.19) 1,059,514,860.34

Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan, 01, 2079 6,151,424,466.95 5,091,909,606.61

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held -

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Ashad 2080 4,200,418,657.77 6,151,424,466.95

Hem Bahadur KC
In charge- Accounts & Finance

Lisa Sherchan
Director

Suyog Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer

Naresh Dhungana
Director

Ganga Sagar Dhakal
Director

Sujan Siddhi Bajracharya
Director

Sushil Kaji Baniya
Director

Ujjwal Satyal
Chairman

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 20 October 2023

As per our report of even date
CA. Ranjeev Shrestha

Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
As on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
(As per NRB Regulation)

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:
. General reserve
. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
. Capital redemption reserve
. Corporate social responsibility fund
. Employees' training fund
Fair Value Reserve
. Investment Adjustment Reserve
. Others
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

>Q ™" 0O Q O T 0

Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwiill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal (+)
h. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investment Securities

Net Profit for the year end 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023) for distribution

Opening Retained Earning as on Shrawan 1, 2079
Adjustment(+,-)
Distributions:
Bonus Shares Issued
Cash Dividend Paid
Total Distributable profit or (Loss) as on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per share

Hem Bahadur KC

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

270,412,816.96

(54,173,496.50)
(227,624.83)

(2,704,128.17)

454,665.54

213,762,233.00

527,173,662.95

(105,434,732.59)
(338,684.86)

(1,022,370.98)
(1,897,672.41)
(3,586,079.18)

414,894,122.93

(73,658,576.68)

20,639,698.89
8,035,864.68

33,517,370.58

(19,344,275.51)

(98,958,733.66)
(21,114,021.95)

(32,849,205.56)

202,296,590.48

242,627,886.25

270,444,268.11

315,918,741.87

256,922,054.71

273,697,242.01

13,522,213.40 14,405,118.00
202,296,590.48 270,444,268.11
6.19 8.98

Lisa Sherchan

Suyog Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer

Naresh Dhungana

In charge- Accounts & Finance Director Director

Ganga Sagar Dhakal
Director

Sujan Siddhi Bajracharya
Director

Sushil Kaji Baniya
Director

Ujjwal Satyal
Chairman

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 20 October 2023

As per our report of even date
CA. Ranjeev Shrestha

Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountant

30 qp 3ff arftie ufdaga



(AT TG FhaTE @ TR T I AT

Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes to The Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080(at July 16 2023)

1. Reporting Entity

The Bank is registered with the Office of Company Registrar as a public limited company and carries out banking activities in
Nepal under the license from Nepal Rastra Bank as a Class “Kha” licensed institution. Bank’s registered corporate office is at
Baluwatar Kathmandu, Nepal. At present Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd. is one of the largest National level Development Bank
with a Branch network of 112 branches.

The Bank is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and its stock symbol is “SADBL”. The financial year of the bank is as on 16 July 2023
(31 Ashad 2080).

2. Basis of Preparation

The Financial statements of the bank has been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2079.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income shown in a single statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Notes to the Accounts.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with Companies Act 2063,
Bank and Financial Institution Act 2073, Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as published by the Accounting
Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued
by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No.4 of NRB Directives, 2079.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise stated.
2.2. Reporting period and approval of Financial Statements

The Bank has adopted the NFRS for the preparation of financial statements, pronounced by ASB with effect from fiscal year
2017/18 (2074.75).

The approval of financial statements accompanied notes to the financial statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors
in its 330" Board Meeting held on 2023/10/20 and the Board acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements
of the Bank. The approved financial statements have been recommended for approval by the shareholders in the 19" annual
general meeting of the Bank.

The Board of Directors may decide to amend the annual accounts as long as these are not adopted by the general meeting of the
shareholders. The general meeting of shareholders may decide not to adopt the annual accounts but may not amend these.

2.3. Responsibility For Financial Statements

The board of directors of the Bank is responsible for approval of financial statements prepared by management of the Bank which
reflects a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the Bank.

The board is of the view that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the prevailing financial reporting
standards, regulations of the Nepal Rastra Bank and the requirements of the Companies Act.

The board of directors acknowledges their responsibility for financial statements as set out in the ‘Statement of Director’s
Responsibility’ and in the certification on the statement of financial position..

These financial statements include the following components:

» Statement of Financial Position [SOFP] providing the information on the financial position of the Bank as at the end of the
reporting period,;

» Statement of Profit or Loss [SOPL] and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income [SOCI] providing the information on the
financial performance of the Bank for the reporting period;

» Statement of Changes in Equity [SOCE] reporting all changes in the shareholders’ funds during the reporting period of the
Bank;
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2.4.

2.5,

2.6.

2.7.

(AT (G FFaTE @' TR A A HEdqT)

» Statement of Cash Flows [SOCF] providing the information to the users, on the ability of the Bank to generate cash and cash
equivalents and utilization of those cash flows; and

> Notes to the financial statements comprising significant accounting policies, other disclosures and other explanatory
information relevant to the study of financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Bank’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The Bank, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and operating
environment. Further, the Bank is required to make judgments in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting
estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements.

The NFRS requires the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.

The Bank applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised
and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever the estimates have
been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

Going Concern

Financial statements of the bank is prepared on a going concern basis. The Management has made an assessment of its ability
to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue its business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the bank ability to
continue as a going concern.

Change in Accounting Policies

The Bank has prepared the opening statement of financial position as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) as at 16
July 2016 (the transition date) by recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS, not recognizing the
items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS as required by
NFRS and applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

Reporting Pronouncements

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on September 13,
2013. The NFRS confirm, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal has pronounced implementation of NFRS. Accordingly, the accompanying
financial statements for the year ended July 16, 2023 are prepared in accordance with NFRS. Details of carve out provided are
as follows.

2.7.1 Impairment

In para 58 of NAS 39 Financial Instrument Recognition and Measurement, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that financial asset measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence
exists, the entity shall apply Incurred Loss Model as per para 63 of NAS 39; to determine the amount of any impairment loss
unless the entity is bank or financial institutions registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073.

Such entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by
Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per para 63 of NAS 39; and shall apply para 63 of NAS 39
to measure the impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and advances.

The entity shall disclose the impairment loss as per this carve-out and the amount of impairment loss determined as per paragraph
63.

2.7.2 Impracticability To Determine Interest Income on Amortized Cost

N

In para AG 93 of NAS 39, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
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purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Interest income shall be calculated by applying effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

2.7.3 Impracticability To Determine Transaction Cost Of All Previous Years Which Is The Part Of Effective Interest Rate

In para 9, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see NAS 18 Revenue), transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments
can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected
life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

2.7.4 NAS 28 - “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

Carve out from the requirement for a parent company to account for an associate in its consolidated financial statements using
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances as specified in para 35 of NAS 28 unless
it is impracticable to do so. As a result of this alternative treatment, associates are allowed to be presented in the consolidated
financial statements without adjustments to the associate’s financial statements which are otherwise required to achieve
consistency in accounting policies between the Group entities and associates.

2.8. Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is material.
2.9. Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to develop such exception to NFRS implementation
has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The bank has applied the accounting policies set out below consistently to all periods presented in the accompanying financial
statements unless specifically stated otherwise.

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following material items in the statement of
financial position:

» Investment Securities are measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

» Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the net total
of the plan assets plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial
losses.

3.2 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and carried at amortized cost.

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances with banks, money at call
and money market funds and financial assets with original maturity less than 3 months from the date of acquisition.

Treasury Bills with original maturity up to 3 months have been classified under cash and cash equivalent amounting to NPR
49,898,027.46.

3.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
a. Recognition

The bank recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to
financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair
value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), are charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Classification

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized
in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial Assets Measured At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:

The bank classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.
Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost directly attributable to the
acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured at amortized
cost using effective interest method.

De-recognition

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The bank follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of quoted for similar
instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with
certainty at the reporting date.

Impairment

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an impairment loss
should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Management’s judgment is extensively used in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about
a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions made.
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The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment and is based on Management’s
best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows,
Management makes judgments about a borrower’s financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable.

Individual assessment of impairment of exposures means establishing whether objective evidence of impairment exists, estimation
of the present value of future cash flows, and calculation of the value of impairment for each individual receivable from the borrower
included in this assessment.

The bank has considered all loans and advances above NRs.50 lakhs and non-performing as per NRB Directive loan for individual
assessment of impairment. The bank determines, for each individual loan to be assessed for individual impairment, whether they
expect to collect their receivables from expected future cash flows (going concern) or from collateral realization (gone concern). If
a bank identifies objective evidence of impairment, the bank indicates, at single debtor level, the most realistic sources of
repayment (collection approach/strategy) based on all available information regarding such borrower’s financial position and
performances. The bank assesses whether collection will be made from the borrower's expected future operating cash flows
(borrower continues to perform business activities — going concern) or on the basis of collateral enforcement and realization
(expectation that the borrower ceases to exist — gone concern). In both cases, bank uses conservative assumptions relating to the
estimation of the expected cash flows, taking into account current economic conditions and the Bank’s own economic forecasts.

A collective impairment provision is established for:

i Groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-maturity, that are not
considered individually significant; and

ii. Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment bank has categorized assets into following broad products as follows:

\4

Deprived Sector Loan
Wholesale Lending
Home Loan

Real Estate Loan
Education Loan

Hire Purchase Loan
Personal Loan

Loan Against FDR
Gold And Silver Loan
Tourism Loan
Foreign Employment Loan
Business Loan
Agricultural Loan
Margin Lending
Industry Loan
Guarantee Loan
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The collective provision for groups of homogeneous loans is established using statistical methods based on historical loss rate
experience, Loss Given Default (LGD) and Probability of Default (PD) computed using the statistical analysis of historical data on
delinquency to estimate the amount of loss for each class of portfolio selected on the basis of its product, risk factor, collateral
coverage, exposure group etc. Management applies judgment to ensure that the estimate of loss arrived at, on the basis of
historical information is appropriately adjusted to reflect the economic conditions and portfolio factors as at the reporting date. The
loss rates are regularly reviewed against actual loss experience.

The Bank has opted to apply carve out on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and collective impairment
loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision required under NRB Directive no. 2, higher of the
amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and receivables.

Details of individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the impairment provision
required under NRB Directive no. 2 are given below:

Impairment as per NFRS

Particulars FY 2079/80 FY 2078/79
Individual Impairment 453,975,800.02 164,213,499.50
Collective Impairment 29,573,445.10 51,211,726.67

Total 483,549,245.12 215,425,226.16
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Impairment as per NRB Directive No.2

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3%

Particulars FY 2079/80 FY 2078/79

Pass Loan Provision 480,365,661.67 504,250,620.52
Watchlist Loan Provision 93,142,753.68 93,187,801.96
Sub-Standard Loan Provision 40,414,467.93 33,776,714.54
Doubtful Loan Provision 248,347,704.19 168,793,125.59
Loss Loan Provision 592,454,285 117,906,353.69
Additional Provision 3,623,200 6,977,868.26
Total 1,458,348,072.47 924,892,484.56

Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date, when the bank enters into contractual
arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized when sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with
transaction costs taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract etc. held for
trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract
date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date. The bank does not have any derivative instrument
during the reporting period.

Property & Equipment

All property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Particulars No. of Years
Computer and Accessories 5
Furniture and Fixtures 7
Office Equipment 7
Vehicles 7
Lease-hold Properties 10

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.
The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered not material.

Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.
Intangible Assets

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that it will generate future
economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method
(SLM).

Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.
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3.8 Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both other than those classified as property and equipment under NAS 16 — “Property,
Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified as non-current assets held for sale under NFRS 5 — “Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations”. Land and Building acquired as non-banking assets are recognized as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently all investment properties are
reported at fair value with any gains or losses in fair value reported in the statement of profit and loss as they arise. No depreciation
is charges in investment property as they are not intended for the owner-occupied use.

3.9 Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current
tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. Details of
Current tax are presented in Schedule 4.41.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realized or the liabilities
settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority, and when the group has a legal right to offset. Details of Deferred tax are presented in Schedule 4.15.

3.10 Deposit, Debts Securities Issued and Subordinated Liabilities.
i. Deposits

The Bank accepts deposits from its customers under account, current, term deposits and margin accounts which allows money to
be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These transactions are recorded on the bank’s books, and the resulting balance
is recorded as a liability for the Bank and represents the amount owed by the Bank to the customer.

ii. Debt Securities Issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued by the Bank. Deposits, debt securities issued, and subordinated
liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their
amortized cost using the effective interest method, except where the group designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
However, debentures issued by the bank are subordinate to the deposits from customer.

iii. Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors. The bank does not have any of such subordinated liabilities.

3.11 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Bank recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Bank has a present constructive or legal obligation that can be
reliability measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but probably will
not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract are lower
than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in
the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
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benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs. Details of Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are presented in Schedule 4.28.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Interest Income

Interest Income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment securities measure
at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFls, loan and advances to
staff etc.

Interest income on loans and advances is recognized on amortized principal which is nearer to the effective interest method
suggested by NFRS. The adoption of effective interest method is not possible due to constraints of time, effort and cost in short
term compared to the benefits it provides. Benefit of cave out has been applied to this effect. Interest of loans and advances which
are significantly impaired are not recognized. Furthermore, the interest income has not been recognized where the loan's
contractual payments of principal/and or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective of the net realizable value of the
collateral as guided by the guidelines issued by NRB.

Interest income on government bond, treasury bills and bank balances are recognized under effective interest method.
Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or significant act
performed. Service Fee Income/Expenses are recognized on accrual basis unless it is impracticable to recognize as allowed
through carve-out on NFRS.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when the
shareholders approve the dividend.

Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related interest income or expense and
dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading.

Interest Expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest rate method.
Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Bank’s trading operations and are presented together
with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term
employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting period):
> wages, salaries and social security contributions,
» paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
»  profit-sharing and bonuses and non-monetary benefits

Post-Employment Benefits

Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings;

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a Bank pays fixed contribution into a separate Bank (a
fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards —
NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
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Provident Fund

Bank deduct ten percent of the basic remuneration of each labor, add cent percent to that amount and deposit the total amount
for the purpose of provident fund. The above expenses are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined
in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

Bank has deposited NPR 21,374,994.00 as expense in the Provident Fund during the FY 2079.80.
Gratuity

Bank has followed Defined Contribution Plan dated from 2075/10/01. Provision for Gratuity has been deposited as per the Labor
Act 2074. Bank has followed following rate to deposit the gratuity:
»  For the employee who have worked first 15 years or less than that, gratuity is provided at 8.33% of the basic remuneration
of each month.
» For the employee who have worked above 15 years and up to 20 years, gratuity is provided at 12.50% of the basic
remuneration of each month
» For the employee who have worked above 20 years, gratuity is provided at 16.67% of the basic remuneration of each
month

Bank has deposited NPR 18,044,747.32 for gratuity expense during the FY 2079.80.
a. Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The bank’s net obligation in respect
of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the
reporting date on corporate bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the bank’s obligation and that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

b. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Bank is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of
withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are
recognized as an expense if the Bank has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted,
and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date,
then they are discounted to their present value.

3.15 Leases

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
either:

> Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the payments to the
lessors are not on that basis; or

» The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s
expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then
this condition is not met.

Majority of lease agreements entered by the Banks are with the clause of normal increment of 5%-15% p.a. which the management
assumes are in line with the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Bank has implemented lease as per NFRS 16 pronounced by ASB with effect from fiscal year 2021/22 (2078.79). The bank has
Right of Use assets of NPR 293,084,831.74 and booked under leasehold assets on 4.13 Property and Equipment (PE).

3.16 Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

3.17 Share Capital and Reserves

Equity is the residual interest in the total assets of the Bank after deducting all of its liability. Shares are classified as equity when
the Bank has an unconditional right to avoid delivery of cash or another financial asset, that is, when the dividend and repayment
of capital are at the sole and absolute discretion of the Bank and there is no contractual obligation whatsoever to that effect.
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Reserves are the allocation out of profit or retained earnings. These are created as statutory requirement, accounting standard
requirement and bank’s own requirement. Details of share capital and reserves are provided in Schedule 4.27.

Earnings per Share (EPS) and diluted EPS

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required
by NAS 33 - Earnings per Share.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The bank’s earnings per share has decreased from NPR 17.51 to NPR 8.28 in current fiscal year due to increase in loan loss

provisions.

Details of calculation of Earnings per share is as follows:

Particulars 16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 270,412,816.96 527,173,662.95
Number of ordinary shares as at year end 32,675,917 30,106,696.62
Basic earnings per share 8.28 17.51
Diluted earnings per share 8.28 17.51

Proposed Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Bank has proposed the following dividend by passing the resolution in the 330" Board Meeting. The

payment is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

The amount of the dividend proposed in current year and previous year is as follows:

FY 2079.80 FY 2078.79
Percentage Amount Percentage Amount
Stock Dividend 5% 163,379,586 8.534% 256,922,054.71
Cash Dividend 0.263% 8,598,926 0.449% 13,522,213.40
Total 5.263% 171,978,512 8.983% 270,444,268.11

Segment Reporting

The Bank’s operating segments are organized and managed separately through the respective department/business managers
according to the nature of products and services provided with each segment representing a strategic business unit. Segment
report include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis

The bank has identified three segments namely: Core Banking, Treasury and Digital banking for the segment reporting. Details
are provided in Notes 5.4
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Pursuant to the requirement of NRB Circular No: 1/078/79 related to AGM Clearance and Dividend Distribution Procedure,

2077, following disclosure are provided.

Table No. 1: Forbearance/relaxation

31st Ashadh 2080 32" Ashadh 2079
Particulars No. of Amount No. of Amount
Customers (NPRin ‘000) Customers (NPR in ‘000)
Accrued Interest Received after Ashadh end
2080 till 15 Shrawan 2080 2,767 51,307 2,672 52,595
T 0,
Restructurle'd/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan 3 2,839 243 401,252
Loss Provision
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20%
to COVID affected borrowers i i 22 20,452
Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working Capital
Loan (COVID Loan) extended for up to 1 year - - 14 7,942
with 5% provisioning
Tlr'ne. Extension provided for repayment of Principal—4 136 Principal-7 1415
Principal and Interest for up to two years as per Interest-0 . Interest-3 278
clause 41 of NRB Directives 2
Table No. 2 Refinance and Business Continuity
31st Ashadh 2080 32" Ashadh 2079
Particulars Amount Amount
No. of Customers (NPR in ‘000) No. of Customers (NPR in ‘000)
Refinance Loan - - 111 648,382
Business Continuity Loan - - - -
Table No. 3 Subsidized Loan
31st Ashadh 2080 32 Ashadh 2079
Particulars Amount Amount
No. of Customers (NPR in ‘000) No. of Customers (NPR in ‘000)
Subsidized Loan 1,588 1,154,303 1,723 1,557,672

b. Loan and Advances Classification

Bank has disbursed NPR 42,151,268,367.93 as Loans and Advances as on the reporting period and out of those insured loan is
NPR 2,325,100,373.56. Details of loan with classification are as follows:

(NPR in ‘000)

Category LLP% Insured Others Total

o - L d)Res”UCt“red’ 1.3% 2,115,939.71 36,764,796 483,989
Pass (Restructured/ Rescheduled COVID 5% ) ) )
Related)

Watch List 5% 101,705.13 1,837,429 93,142.75
Rescheduled/Restructured 12.5% - - -
Substandard 25% 39,257.14 151,844 40,414.47
Doubtful 50% 54,970.00 482,953 248,347.70
Bad 100% 13,228.39 589,147.19 592,454.28
Total Loan 2,325,100 39,826,168 1,458,348
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c. Interest Capitalization of Loan
Interest capitalized related to loans disbursed to the national prioritized sector as on the reporting period are as follows:

NPR in ‘000
31st Ashadh 2080 32" Ashadh 2079
Name Loan Interest Loan Interest
Outstanding Capitalized Outstanding Capitalized
Yambaling Hydropower Pvt. Ltd. 376,951 33,460 243,040 17,102
Bhujung Hydropower Pvt Limited 404,797 34,326 207,177 4,337
Him Star Urja Company Ltd. 142,064 2,258 - -
Mount Everest Power Development Pvt 213,996 12,486 - -
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4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash In Hand

Balances with BFls

Money at Call and Short Notice
Other

Total

As at
16 July 2023

(AT TG FhaTE @ TR T I )

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

564,861,205.11
14,239,299.39
3,571,420,125.81
49,898,027.46

564,575,754.28
15,729,441.32
5,471,828,993.60
99,290,277.75

4,200,418,657.77

6,151,424,466.95

The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is its carrying value. Cash at vault is adequately insured for physical
and financial risks. The amount of cash at vault is maintained on the basis of the liquidity and business
requirements. Balance with BFls includes balance maintained at various banks and financial institutions. Other
items on cash and cash equivalents include treasury bills with maturity above 7 days and below 3 months.

The foreign convertible currency held in hand and banks are subject to price fluctuation due to market
movement. The Bank continuously monitors and manages the market risk involved in foreign currency thus
they are considered to be exposed to insignificant risks.

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

1,978,733,045.58 1,426,720,504.63
Securities purchased under Resale Agreement - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 55,718,788.63 23,663,197.98
Total 2,034,451,834.21 1,450,383,702.61

Statutory Balances with NRB

The fair value of balance with the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) is its carrying amount itself. Balance with the NRB
is principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by the NRB.

Other deposit and receivable from NRB includes receivable from NRB for interest subsidy and the foreign
convertible currency deposit and are subject to price fluctuation to market movement.

4.3 Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Placement with Domestic B/Fls - -
Placement with Foreign B/Fls - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment - -

Total - -

Placement with Banks and Financial Institution includes the placements with domestic as well as foreign bank
and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date.

Bank does not have placement with bank and financial institutions as on reporting date.
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4.4 Derivative financial instruments
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Held for Trading - -
Interest Rate Swap - -
Currency Swap - -
Forward exchange Contract. - -
Others - -
Held for risk management - -
Interest Rate Swap - -
Currency Swap - -
Forward exchange Contract - -
Others - -
Total - -

Bank does not have any foreign currency exposures as on reporting date.

4.5 Other Trading Assets

Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Treasury bills - -

Government Bonds - -

NRB Bonds - -

Domestic Corporate bonds - -

Equity

Other - -

Total - -

Pledged - -

Non-Pledged - -
Trading assets are those assets that the bank has acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or holds
as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit are presented under this head. The bank
has presented the equity held for trading under this head.

Bank does not have any other trading assets as on reporting date.

4.6 Loan and Advances to BFls
Amount in NPR

As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Loans to microfinance institutions 2,310,906,732.05 3,002,172,302.50
Other - -
Less: Allowances for impairment (85,540,706.74) (94,832,377.26)
2,225,366,025.31 2,907,339,925.24

Impairment allowance on Loans and advances to B/Fls have been considered as per NRB Directive. Accured
Interest Receivables related to Loans and advances to B/FIs as on Ashadh end 2080 amounts to NPR
1,243,607.89.
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4.6.1 Specific Allowance for Impairment
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal

Amount written off

Balances at Ashad end

94,832,377.26

(9,291,670.52)

41,401,044.90

53,431,332.36

85,540,706.74

94,832,377.26

No individual loans to banks and micro finance has terms and conditions that significantly affect the amount,
timing or certainty of consolidated cash flows of the Bank. Risks associated with these assets are regularly
assessed. These are interest bearing advances and the income on these assets is credited to statement of
profit or loss under interest income.

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost

Less: Impairment allowances
Individual impairment
Collective impairment

Net amount

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL

Total

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

41,234,119,546.00

(829,868,146.98)
(542,939,218.74)

41,401,004,616.02

(270,723,615.13)
(559,336,492.16)

39,861,312,180.28

40,570,944,508.72

39,861,312,180.28

40,570,944,508.72

Above impairment is higher of impairment as per NRB Directive no.2 or as per Para 63 of NAS 39.

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advance- By Product
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Product
Term loans 14,698,672,500.62 12,366,579,507.37
Overdraft 8,110,132,253.99 9,446,410,825.84

Trust receipt/Import loans

Demand and other working capital loans

Personal residential loans
Real estate loans

Margin lending loans

Hire purchase loans
Deprived sector loans
Bills purchased

928,648,028.86
6,461,155,757.55
2,541,641,450.86
933,368,458.84
2,859,028,219.49
1,972,317,567.15

1,177,371,444.29
6,173,667,920.84
2,696,950,192.10
1,198,955,505.27
3,479,767,724.62
2,272,335,688.07

Staff loans 1,009,593,494.55 894,203,915.78
Other 1,336,641,006.42 1,440,474,376.95
Sub total 40,851,198,738.33 41,146,717,101.13
Interest receivable 382,920,807.67 254,287,514.89
Grand total 41,234,119,546.00 41,401,004,616.02
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4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advance- By Currency

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
uUsD

GBP

Euro

JPY

Chinese Yuan
Other

Total

4.7.3 Analysis of loan and advance- By Collateral

Secured
Movable / Immovable assets
Gold and silver
Guarantee of domestic B/Fis
Government Guarantee
Guarantee of international rated bank
Export document
Fixed Deposit receipts
Government securities / bonds Counter guarantee
Counter guarantee
Personal guarantee
Other
Subtotal
Unsecured
Grand Total

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment

8%

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other movement
Balance at Ashad end
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge/(reversal) for the year
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other movement
Balance at Ashad end
Total allowances for impairment

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

41,234,119,546.00

41,401,004,616.02

41,234,119,546.00

41,401,004,616.02

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

36,443,758,330.23
141,184,920.49

623,867,305.27

2,020,165,531.03
2,005,143,458.97

35,839,332,326.51
126,687,728.25
3,337,508.00
753,298,203.93

1,808,683,556.24
2,869,665,293.08

41,234,119,546.00

41,401,004,616.02

41,234,119,546.00

41,401,004,616.02

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

270,723,615.13

559,144,531.85

236,430,714.80

34,292,900.33

829,868,146.98

270,723,615.13

559,336,492.16

(16,397,273.42)

489,633,814.66

69,702,677.51

542,939,218.74

559,336,492.16

1,372,807,365.72

830,060,107.30
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4.8 Investment Securities

Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity measure at FVTOCI
Total

As at
16 July 2023

(AT TG FhaTE @ TR T I AT

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

8,280,472,402.75
739,830,807.83

6,824,434,079.93
545,702,097.05

9,020,303,210.58

7,370,136,176.98

Investment made by the Bank in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in two
categories i.e. investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Investment other than those measured at amortized cost is
measured at fair value and changes in fair value has been recognized in other comprehensive income. Where
income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the valuation of investment is made by
increasing the number of shares without changing in the cost of investment.

The bank has made an agreement with Nabil Investment for Portfolio Management Service (PMS) with the
amount of NPR 10,000,000 on 2079.02.20 for 5 years PMS Value of NPR 1 crore is categorised into Investment
in Equity and Account Receivable of NPR 8,412,937.91 and NPR 1,587,062.09 respectively as on reporting
date.

Treasury Bills with original maturity up to 3 months have been classified under cash and cash equivalent

amounting to NPR 49,898,027 .46.

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

4.8.1 Investment securities measured at amortized cost
As at
16 July 2023
Debt securities -
Government bonds 7,750,205,488.95

Government treasury bills 530,266,913.80
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments -
Other -
Less: specific allowances for impairment -

5,108,142,313.31
1,716,291,766.62

Total 8,280,472,402.75

6,824,434,079.93

4.8.2 Investment securities measured through other comprehensive Income

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities 702,008,307.83
Unquoted equity securities 37,822,500.00

435,498,697.05
110,203,400.00

Total 739,830,807.83

545,702,097.05
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4.8.3 Investment in Shares

Investment in Quoted Equity Securities
Investment in Mutual Fund
Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund
500,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Global IME Balanced Fund-1
1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Kumari Dhanabriddhi Yojana
5,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Kumari Equity Fund

1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Mega Mutual Fund -1

436,340 units of Rs. 10 each
Nabil Balanced Fund llI
16,680 units of Rs. 10 each
NIBL Growth Fund

1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
250,000 units of Rs. 10 each
NIBL Samriddhi Fund 2
3,672,123 units of Rs. 10 each
NIC Asia Dyanamic Fund
664,820 units of Rs. 10 each
NIC Asia Flexi Cap Fund
3,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
NIC Asia Select Fund 30
500,000 units of Rs. 10 each
NMB Sulav Investment Fund — 2
5,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Prabhu Select Fund
1,468,100 units of Rs. 10 each
Prabhu Smart Fund

1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
RBB Mutual Fund 1

500,000 units of Rs. 10 each
RBB Mutual Fund 2

800,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Sanima Large Cap Fund
1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 3
1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Sunrise Bluechip Fund
4,605,026 units of Rs. 10 each
Sunrise Focused Equity Fund
3,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each
Sub-total

8T

Amount in NPR

16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Cost Price Fair Value Cost Price Fair Value
5,000,000.00 5,115,000.00 - -

10,000,000.00

50,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

4,363,400.00

166,800.00

10,000,000.00

36,721,230.00

30,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

50,000,000.00

14,681,000.00

10,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

8,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

46,050,260.00

30,000,000.00

9,340,000.00

50,200,000.00

10,170,000.00

3,486,356.60

126,267.60

10,640,000.00

33,453,040.53

30,510,000.00

4,495,000.00

49,950,000.00

12,992,685.00

9,900,000.00

4,040,000.00

8,000,000.00

8,920,000.00

10,310,000.00

36,149,454.10

29,040,000.00

10,000,000.00

4,363,400.00

166,800.00

2,500,000.00

36,721,230.00

6,648,200.00

5,000,000.00

14,681,000.00

5,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

46,050,260.00

10,070,000.00

3,486,356.60

157,292.40

2,680,000.00

31,837,306.41

7,120,222.20

4,385,000.00

14,108,441.00

4,635,000.00

9,320,000.00

40,247,927.24

344,982,690.00

326,837,803.83

141,130,890.00

128,047,545.85
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Investment in Public Share
Arun Kabeli Power Ltd.
363 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

Arun Valley Hydropower Development Co. Ltd.

2,160 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Asian Life Insurance Co. Limited
1,863 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited

60 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
CEDB Hydropower Development Co. Ltd.
1,500 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Citizen Investment Trust

1,157 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Himalayan Distillery Limited

400 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Himalayan Life Insurance Limited
454 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Life Insurance Co. Nepal Ltd.

8,400 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Mountain Energy Nepal Limited
1,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Neco Insurance Co. Ltd.

6,924 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited
700 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

13,680 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Nerude Laghubitta Bittya Sanstha Limited
11,560 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Ngadi Group Power Ltd.

88 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

11,698 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Premier Insurance Company

4,570 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Prime Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

402 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Rastriya Beema Company Limited
30 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Ridi Power Company Limited

57 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Sahas Urja Limited

1,400 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Sanima GIC Insurance Limited
81,429 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Shivam Cements Limited

700 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Siddhartha Premier Insurance Limited
5,563 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Soaltee Hotel Limited

10,049 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

qu 3t arftie wfeaes

29,500.00

704,326.42

911,603.73

838,264.75

1,099,230.95

3,437,121.48

874,319.20

269,387.21

16,182,453.75

881,755.62

6,813,219.31

617,383.17

26,164,973.33

12,032,366.30

7,400.00

14,059,532.69

401,715.38

3,600.00

704,991.89

8,142,900.00

513,596.56

4,995,463.93

2,500,897.84

85,123.50

550,800.00

1,388,121.30

828,000.00

1,356,000.00

2,416,973.00

899,200.00

230,178.00

13,062,000.00

995,000.00

6,169,976.40

634,830.00

10,177,920.00

7,953,280.00

20,583.20

8,948,970.00

482,970.00

13,851.00

677,460.00

52,920,707.10

456,050.00

4,330,795.50

4,873,765.00

(AT TG FhaTE @ TR T I )

29,500.00

135,676.00

199,296.00

3,437,121.48

147,847.00

16,182,453.75

5,947,473.52

170,634.00

26,164,973.33

12,032,366.30

2,300.00

14,059,532.69

4,989,963.93

269,387.21

261,151.40

3,600.00

163,828.00

136,374.00

5,500.00

2,500,897.84

166,617.00

142,440.00

219,000.00

2,238,350.00

170,500.00

11,886,000.00

3,345,774.00

175,780.00

10,218,960.00

8,338,880.00

9,801.00

10,803,170.00

2,632,320.00

228,738.00

268,000.00

33,520.00

184,000.00

152,000.00

169,634.40

1,937,925.00
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Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
22,540 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
7,950 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

United Modi Hydropower Ltd.

360 equity shares of Rs.100 each

Sub-total

Investment in Promoter Share
Prabhu Life Insurance Ltd.
1,777,500 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

Sadhana Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Promoter

351,050 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Sanima GIC Insurance Limited Promoter
218,571 equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Sub-total

Total Investment in Quoted Equity Securities

Investment in Unquoted Equity Securities
Investment in Mutual Fund

NIC Asia Flexi Cap Fund

3,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each

Kumari Sunaulo Lagani Yojana

500,000 units of Rs. 10 each

Kumari Dhanabriddhi Yojana

5,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each

Sub-total

Investment in Promoter Share

Nepal Clearing House Ltd.

48,308 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

Nepal Electronic Payment System Ltd.

10,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

Smart Choice Technologies Ltd.

266,667 equity shares of Rs. 100 each

Sub-total

Total Investment in Unquoted Equity Securities

Total Investment in Equity

30

18,653,035.00

10,584,853.57

33,700.00

13,749,400.00

7,159,770.00

76,680.00

18,653,035.00

10,584,853.57

33,700.00

8,722,980.00

8,080,128.00

76,633.80

131,457,592.08

140,458,404.00

116,111,465.02

70,201,151.20

177,750,000.00

20,000,000.00

21,857,100.00

177,750,000.00

35,105,000.00

21,857,100.00

177,750,000.00

20,000,000.00

30,000,000.00

177,750,000.00

29,500,000.00

30,000,000.00

219,607,100.00

234,712,100.00

227,750,000.00

237,250,000.00

696,047,382.08

702,008,307.83

484,992,355.02

435,498,697.05

30,000,000.00

30,000,000.00

5,000,000.00 5,325,000.00 - -
- - 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
5,000,000.00 5,325,000.00 80,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
925,000.00 4,830,800.00 925,000.00 2,536,700.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

26,666,700.00

26,666,700.00

26,666,700.00

26,666,700.00

28,591,700.00

32,497,500.00

28,591,700.00

30,203,400.00

33,591,700.00

37,822,500.00

108,591,700.00

110,203,400.00

729,639,082.08

739,830,807.83

593,584,055.02

545,702,097.05
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4.9 Current Tax Assets
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Current income tax assets
Current tax of prior periods
Total Current Tax Assets
Current income tax liabilities
Current tax of prior periods
Total Current Tax Liabilities

198,819,855.43

252,364,066.51

198,819,855.43

252,364,066.51

134,335,715.65

218,871,301.35

134,335,715.65

218,871,301.35

Total (Current Assets - Current Liabilities)

64,484,139.78

33,492,765.16

Current Tax Assets includes advance income tax paid by the Bank under self-assessment tax returns filed as
per the Income Tax Act 2058 and tax deducted at source (TDS) on behalf of the Bank. Similarly, the current
income tax liabilities includes the tax payable to the Government computed as per the provision of the Income

Tax Act 2058.
4.10 Investment in subsidiaries
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries - -
Total Investment - -
Less: Impairment
Net Carrying Amount - -
Bank does not have any subsidiary as on reporting date.
4.10.1 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
............................ Ltd.
...shares of Rs. ....each - - - -
............................ Ltd.
shares of Rs. ....each - - - -
Total - - - -
4.10.2 Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
............................ Ltd.
...shares of Rs. ....each - - - -
............................ Ltd.
shares of Rs. ....each - - - -

Total - - - -
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4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the bank

Amount in NPR
Percentage of Ownership by Bank

As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Total - - - -

4.10.4 Non-Controlling Interest of the subsidiaries
Amount in NPR
As at 16 July 2023

Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balance of NCI as on Ashad end
Dividend paid to NCI
As at 16 July 2022

Equity interest held by NCI (%)

Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balance of NCI as on Ashad end
Dividend paid to NCI

4.11 Investment in Associates

Amount in
NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in quoted associates - - - -
Investment in unquoted associates - - - -

Total Investment -

Total -

The Bank does not have any associates as on the reporting date.

4.11.1 Investment in quoted associates
Amount in NPR

As at 16 July 2023 As at 16 July 2022

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each - - - -
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each - - - -
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4.11.2 Investment in unquoted associates
Amount in NPR
As at 16 July 2023 As at 16 July 2022
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

........................................... Ltd. - - - -

4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the bank
Percentage of Ownership by Bank

As at 16 July 2023 As at 16 July 2022

Total

4.11.4 Equity value of associates
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

........................................... Ltd. -

4.12 Investment Properties
Amount in NPR

As at As at

16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Sharwan 1 - -
Addition/disposal during the year - -
Net changes in fair value during the year - -
Adjustment/transfer - -
Net amount - -
Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on Sharwan 1, 157,077,355.01 -
Addition/disposal during the year (32,761,426.81) 157,077,355.01
Net changes in fair value during the year - -
Adjustment/transfer - -
Net amount 124,315,928.20 157,077,355.01
Total 124,315,928.20 157,077,355.01
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414 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Cost

Balance at Ashad end 2078
Additions:

Acquisition

Capitalization

Disposals or classified as held for sale
Adjustment

Balance at Ashad end 2079

Additions

Acquisition

Capitalization

Disposals or classified as held for sale
Adjustment

Balance at Ashad end 2080

Amortization and Impairment
Balance at Ashad end 2078
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the Year
Disposals

Adjustment

Balance at Ashad end 2079
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the Year
Disposals

Adjustment

Balance at Ashad end 2080
Capital Work in Progress

Net Book Value

Balance at Ashad end 2078
Balance at Ashad end 2079
Balance at Ashad end 2080

&
(AT TG FhaTE @ TR T I AT
Amount in NPR
Software As at As at

Goodwill Purchased Developed Others Ashad end 2080 Ashad end 2079
- 20,492,675.40 - - 20,492,675.40 20,040,675.40
- 2,959,458.71 - - 2,959,458.71 452,000.00
- 2,959,458.71 - - 2,959,458.71 452,000.00
- 23,452,134.11 - - 23,452,134.11 20,492,675.40
- i’ 8,138,343.31 - i’ - 8,138,343.31 2,959,458.71
- 8,138,343.31 - - 8,138,343.31 2,959,458.71

- 1,500.00 - - 1,500.00 -
- 31,588,977.42 - - 7 31,588,977.42 23,452,134.11
- 16,569,390.41 - - 16,569,390.41 14,868,267.88
- 1,754,762.15 - - 1,754,762.15 1,701,122.53
- 18,324,152.56 - - f 18,324,152.56 16,569,390.41
- 2,929,328.89 - - 2,929,328.89 1,754,762.15
- 1,499.00 - - 1,499.00 -
- 21,251,982.45 - - 7 21,251,982.45 18,324,152.56
Software As at As at

Goodwill Purchased Developed Others Ashad end 2080  Ashad end 2079

- 3,923,284.99 - - 3,923,284.99 5,172,407.52

- 5,127,981.55 - - 5,127,981.55 3,923,284.99

- 10,336,994.97 - - 10,336,994.97 5,127,981.55

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that
it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis
of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense upfront.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date that it is
available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods is five years.

Software assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchases as revenue expenditure.

4.15 Deferred tax

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Net Amount

qu 3t arftie wfeaes

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR

As at
16 July 2022

137,401,661.02
90,982,967.25

152,690,855.78
98,236,297.33

46,418,693.77

54,454,558.45
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415 Deferred tax (Continued)

Previous Year
Net Deferred Tax
Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and advance to B/Fls - - -
Loan and advance to customers - -
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities 14,364,587.39 - 14,364,587.39
Investment in Associate and Subsidiary - -
Right on Use of Assets (NFRS 16) 98,236,297.33 (98,236,297.33)

Property & Equipment
Gratuity Liability
Leave Liability

Lease Liabilities under NFRS 16

Loan Loss Provision

938,850.49

23,567,135.40
113,742,918.96

938,850.49

23,567,135.40
113,742,918.96

Debenture Issue Expenses - - 77,363.54
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 152,690,855.78 98,236,297.33 54,454,558.45
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred tax asset/liabilities as on Ashad End 2079 54,454,558.45

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Ashad End 2078
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss 5,498,899.92
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income 15,615,122.03
Deferred tax expense/(income recognised in directly in equity -

33,340,536.49
21,114,021.95

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and advance to B/Fls
Loan and advance to customers

Investment Properties
Investment Securities

Investment in Associate and Subsidiary
Right on Use of Assets (NFRS 16)

Property & Equipment
Gratuity Liability
Leave Liability

Lease Liabilities

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax

Current Year
Net Deferred Tax

Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
- 3,057,517.72 (3,057,517.72)
87,925,449.52 (87,925,449.52)

3,560,149.30 3,560,149.30

25,848,681.60
107,830,917.13

25,848,681.60
107,830,917.13

Loan Loss Provision -
Debenture Issue Expenses 161,912.99 - 161,912.99
Other temporary differences - - -
137,401,661.02 90,982,967.25 46,418,693.77

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred tax asset/liabilities as on Ashad End 2080 46,418,693.77

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Ashad End 2079 54,454,558.45
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (8,035,864.68)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss 9,581,097.10

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income (17,616,961.78)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity -
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4.16 Other Assets

417

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

Assets held for sale -
Other Non-banking assets -
Bills receivable -
Accounts receivable 139,234,465.71
Accrued Income -
Prepayments and Deposit 2,847,802.63
NCHL Security Guarantee 10,000,000.00
Income Tax Deposit -
Deferred Employee expenditure 190,090,725.52

166,444,231.24

2,068,169.87

172,314,088.89
12,357,151.63
11,257,899.49
(0.74)
913,985.88
185,267.00

Other 16,094,351.23
Stationery 15,016,931.03
Commission receivables -
Deposit 892,153.20
Gold and Silver Coin 185,267.00

Total 358,267,345.08

353,183,641.63

Accounts receivable includes bank balance available with PMS NPR 1,587,062.09.
Due to Bank and financial Institutions

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

Money Market Deposit -
Interbank Borrowing -
Other deposits from B/Fls 1,941,704,603.25
Settlement and clearing accounts -
Other deposits from B/Fls -

3,429,749,960.53

Total 1,941,704,603.25

3,429,749,960.53

The balances in accounts maintained with the Bank by other local financial institution have been presented under
this head. Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other

amount due to bank and financial institution is presented under due to bank and financial institutions.

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last resort facility from NRB
Sale and repurchase agreement
Other due to Nepal Rastra Bank

694,042,277.00
1,050,000,000.00

Total

1,744,042,277.00

The amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, sale and

repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

qu 3t arftie wfeaee
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4.19 Derivative financial instruments

4.20 Deposit from Customers

4.201

vz
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Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap

Forward exchange Contract.

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap
Currency Swap

Forward exchange Contract

Others
Total

The Bank does not have any derivative financial instruments as on the reporting date.

Corporate Customers

Term Deposit
Call Deposit
Current Deposit
Other

Retail Deposit
Term Deposit
Saving Deposit
Current Deposit
Other

Total

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee

United State dollar
Great Britain pound

Euro
Japenese yen
Chinese yuan
Other

Total

Currency-wise deposit include Nepalese Rupee deposits only.

Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

9,275,855,918.94
2,613,644,885.98
508,480,375.22
21,533,115.41

10,490,680,499.79
2,320,495,271.25
726,946,946.25
13,748,592.74

12,419,514,295.55

13,551,871,310.03

26,721,954,232.17
11,277,156,850.99
140,098,798.14
8,997,688.69

24,411,518,024.39
10,658,457,622.37
146,565,257.26
6,982,931.89

38,148,207,569.99

35,223,523,835.90

50,567,721,865.54

48,775,395,145.94

Deposit from Customer- Currency

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

50,567,721,865.54

48,775,395,145.94

50,567,721,865.54

48,775,395,145.94

qu Y arftfe wfeager



421 Borrowing

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Other Institution
Other

Sub-total

Foreign Borrowing
Foreign B/Fls
Multilateral Development Banks
Other Institutions
Sub-total

Total

The Bank does not have any borrowing as on the reporting date.

4.22 Provisions

Provisions for redundancy
Provision for restructuring
Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contracts
Other
Total

4.22.1 Movement in provision

Balance at Shrawan 1

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashad end

qu 3t arftie wfeaee
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Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
13
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Other Liabilities

Liability for employees defined Contribution
obligations

Liability for long-service leave
Short-term employee benefits

Bills Payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant income
Unpaid Dividend

Lease Liabilities under NFRS 16
Employee bonus payable

Other

Audit Fee Payable

TDS payable

Central Fund

Emergency Fund

Interest Payable on Debenture
Other

Total

Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
29,850.03 1,512,682.63

86,162,272.00

5,383,697.62
161,898,887.61
159,062,963.71

210,363.84
359,436,390.45
43,907,492.83
94,018,328.56
1,026,500.00
43,034,461.16
2,415,711.00
6,113,647.22
30,406,828.50
11,021,180.67

78,557,118.00

8,612,276.47
134,175,070.11
154,564,008.52

210,363.84
379,143,063.19
82,282,896.04
99,082,607.95
930,000.00
39,926,700.07
2,426,011.00
6,160,947.22
34,181,759.25
15,457,190.41

910,110,246.64

938,140,086.75

Liabilities relating to employees benefits like gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-service leave, short-
term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals, unpaid dividend etc. are presented under this account
head of other liabilities. Long service leave consists of sick leave and annual leave.

Liability for employees defined contribution obligations of NPR 29,850.03 presented under this account head
is gratuity payable for the month of Ashad 2080.

Actuarial breakup for defined benefit obligations have been disclosed in disclosure in 4.23.

4.23.1 A. Liability for employees Defined benefit obligations
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligations - -
4.23.2 A. Plan Assets
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Equity Shares - -
Government Bonds - -
Bank Deposit - -
Other - -

Total - -

&0



4.23.3 A Movement in Present Value of defined benefits Obligation

Fair Value of Obligation at beginning of the year
Acturial (gain)/loss

Benefits paid by the plan

Current Service Cost and Interest

Defined benefits obligation at year end

Bank does not have defined benefits obligation as on reporting date.

4.23.4 A Movement in Present Value of Plan Assets

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1

Actuarial losses

Benefits paid by the plan

Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end

4.23.5 A Expenses recognized in Income Statement

Current service cost

Past service costs-(non Vested)
Past service costs (Vested)
Interest cost

Expected Return on Plan Assets
Total

4.23.6 A Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain)/loss
Total

4.23.7 A Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate

Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase
Expected return on Plan Assets

qu 3t arftie wfeaee
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Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Amountin NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
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4.23.1 B Liability for long-service leave

Amount recognised in Statement of Financial Position:

Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 86,162,272.00 78,557,118.00
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation - -
Total present value of obligations 86,162,272.00 78,557,118.00
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligation 86,162,272.00 78,557,118.00
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 86,162,272.00 78,557,118.00

4.23.2 B Plan Assets

&9

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1

Actuarial losses/(gain)

Benefits paid by the plan

Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end

4.23.4 B Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1
Contributions paid into the plan

Benefits paid during the year

Interest Income

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end

Plan assets comprise Amount In NPR
As at As at

16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Equity Shares - -
Government Bonds - -
Bank Deposit - -
Other - -
Total - -

4.23.3 B Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

78,557,118.00
(4,376,468.00)

(12,551,532.00)
24,533,154.00

72,815,539.00

(6,419,190.00)
(14,024,947.00)
26,185,716.00

86,162,272.00

78,557,118.00

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022
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4.23.5 B Expenses recognized in Income Statement
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As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

Current service cost

Past service costs-(Non Vested)
Past service costs (Vested)
Actuarial (gain)/loss

Interest cost

Expected Return on Plan Assets

17,305,019.00

(4,376,468.00)
7,228,135.00

20,263,440.00

(6,419,190.00)
5,922,276.00

Total

20,156,686.00

19,766,526.00

4.23.6 B Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Total

4.23.7 B Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate

Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase
Withdrawal rate

4.24 Debt securities issued

As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
10.00% 10.00%
8.00% 8.00%
5.00% 5.00%
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Debt securities issued designated as at Fair Value
Through Profit Or Loss
Debt securities issued at Amortized Cost

746,567,409.80

746,285,578.30

Total

746,567,409.80

746,285,578.30

Bank has issued 9% SADBL Debenture 2087 of NPR 750,000,000 (750,000 units @ NPR 1,000). Interest rate
of 9% per annum is paid semi-annually and it is listed in Nepal Stock Exchange. Debt securities are initially
measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their amortized cost using effective
interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

4.25 Subordinate Liabilities

As at

16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at

16 July 2022

Redeemable preference shares

Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities
component)

Other

Total

Bank does not have any kind of subordinated liabilities as on reporting date.
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Share Capital

Ordinary Shares

Convertible Preference Shares
Irredeemable Preference Shares
(equity component only)

Perpetual debt (equity component only)
Total

Ordinary Shares

Authorized capital

50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each
Issued capital

32,675,917 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each
Paid up capital

32,675,917 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each
Total

Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
3,267,591,716.72 3,010,669,662.01
3,267,591,716.72 3,010,669,662.01
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

5,000,000,000.00

3,267,591,716.72

3,267,591,716.72

3,000,000,000.00

3,010,669,662.01

3,010,669,662.01

3,267,591,716.72

3,010,669,662.01

426.2 A Ordinary Share Ownership
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
% Amount % Amount
Domestic Ownership 100% 3,267,591,716.72 100% 3,010,669,662.01
Nepal Government
"A" Class licensed institutions
Other licensed
institutions
General Public 49% 1,601,121,701.19 49% 1,475,229,756.00
Promoter 51% 1,666,470,015.53 51% 1,535,439,906.01
Others
Foreign Ownership
Total 100% 3,267,591,716.72 100% 3,010,669,662.01
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4.26.2 A List of shareholders holding 0.5% or more share of the total share of the bank

As at 16 July 2023
S.No Name P;\T:::r :::::; Total shares Percentage
1 BISWASH GAUCHAN 475,081.27 165,828.27 640,909.54 1.96%
2 RAJESH NARAYAN SHRESTHA 459,296.28 122,761.65 582,057.93 1.78%
3 UJJWAL SATYAL 378,435.31 117,382.85 495,818.16 1.52%
4 SHOVA MISHRA 267,180.28 86,191.87 353,372.15 1.08%
5 JYOTI SHERCHAN GAUCHAN 227,684.61 76,714.03 304,398.64 0.93%
6 ACHYUT PRASAD PRASAI 218,076.29 82,936.63 301,012.92 0.92%
7 RAMESH KUMAR KANDU 226,160.58 55,611.54 281,772.12 0.86%
8 MADHAB PRASAD MAINALI 202,841.68 76,477.06 279,318.74 0.85%
9 RAJESH KUMAR SHRESTHA 263,966.77 0.16 263,966.93 0.81%
10  DR. RABINDRA PRASAD SHRESTHA 208,074.25 52,625.44 260,699.69 0.80%
11 RAJENDRA PRASAD PAUDEL 232,887.55 4,688.40 237,575.95 0.73%
12 GANGA PRASAD GURUNG 171,010.71 56,322.76 227,333.47 0.70%
13 KESHAB PRASAD PRASAIN 193,839.07 31,159.90 224,998.97 0.69%
14 AMBI RATNA SHAKYA - 221,010.98 221,010.98 0.68%
15 SIKANDAR GAUCHAN 92,869.97 109,496.12 202,366.09 0.62%
16 SHREERAMAN KHANAL 161,541.03 26,890.39 188,431.42 0.58%
17  BADRI LAL MALLA 140,369.38 45,230.81 185,600.19 0.57%
18  SHAKUNTALA PRASAIN 131,141.19 52,144.37 183,285.56 0.56%
19  PABITRA LAL CHUKE 178,967.23 45.34 179,012.57 0.55%
20 KESHAV BOHARA 175,289.55 - 175,289.55 0.54%
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Reserves

Statutory general reserve
Exchange equalization reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve

Investment adjustment reserve
Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve

Dividend equalization reserve
Actuarial gain

Special reserve

Staff training reserve

Jifdic Seciudicoc b fot.

Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
664,731,481.46 610,557,984.96
826,714.52 599,089.69
5,816,211.64 5,181,338.50

334,437,627.10
7,134,207.32

1,022,769.61

322,971,984.57
(33,517,371.28)

1,897,672.41

Total 1,013,969,011.65 907,690,698.84
> General Reserve
As per Directive No: 4/79, bank is required to maintain a minimum 20% of the net to the general reserve until the
reserve is twice the paid of share capital and thereafter a minimum 10% of net profit of each year. This reserve is
not available for distribution to shareholder in any form and requires specific approval of NRB for any transfer from
this heading.
> Movement in General Reserve is as follows:
Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Opening Balance of General Reserve 610,557,984.96 505,123,252.37
20% of Net Profit allocated 54,173,496.50 105,434,732.59
Closing Balance of General Reserve 664,731,481.46 610,557,984.96
> Exchange Equalization Reserve
As per Directive No: 4/79, bank is required to appropriate 25% of current year’s total revaluation gain (except gain
from revaluation of Indian Currency) into this heading.
Movement in Exchange Equalization Reserve is as follows:
Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Opening Balance of Exchange Equalization Reserve 599,089.69 260,404.83
25% Allocation 227,624.83 338,684.86
Closing Balance of Exchange Equalization Reserve 826,714.52 599,089.69
&% qu 3if arfier ufaegar
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Fair Value Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is a requirement in the application of accounting policy for financial assets.
Assets that are not classified as Fair Value through Profit and Loss, Held to maturity and Loans and Receivables
are categorized as Available for Sale financial instruments. The accounting of gain or loss in the fair value
movement of Financial Assets is done through Other Comprehensive Income under NAS 39.

Other Reserve

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented under thus by
disclosing accounting heads.

a Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of net profit as per NRB
Directive is presented under this account head and is utilized towards corporate social responsibility expenditure
in subsequent year.

Amount in NPR

As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Opening Balance of CSR Fund 5,181,338.50 4,158,967.52
1% of Net Profit allocated 2,704,128.17 5,271,736.63
Utilization from CSR Fund (2,069,255.03) (4,249,365.65)
Closing Balance of CSR Fund 5,816,211.64 5,181,338.50

b  Staff Training Fund

This is a statutory reserve specified in NRB Directive 6/79 and is created on the basis of 3% of personnel
expenses of preceding year. Then after the provisioned amount is forwarded for staff training and development.

Amount in NPR

As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Opening Balance of Staff Training Fund 1,897,672.41 -
3% of salary and allowances of last year 13,137,955.79 10,052,968.21
Utilization during the year (14,012,858.61) (8,155,295.80)
Closing Balance of Staff Training Fund 1,022,769.59 1,897,672.41

During the period, bank has created NPR 1,022,769.59 for Staff Training Fund.
¢ Investment Adjustment Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve pertains to maintain as per the regulatory requirement of the Directive No. 8 of
Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives. Bank has to create the investment reserve of an amount equivalent to
the investment in the equity shares if the shares remained unquoted within three years from the date of
investment. Such amount should not be utilized elsewhere unless such shares get listed.

Details of investment in unquoted equity as on reporting date are given below:

Name of Investment Date of investment Cost Price (NPR)

Nepal Clearing House Ltd. 20/01/2015 925,000.00
Nepal Electronic Payment System Ltd. 28/06/2018 1,000,000.00
Smart Choice Technologies Ltd. 25/11/2020 26,666,700.00
Kumari Sunaulo Lagani Yojana 22/06/2022 5,000,000.00
Total 33,591,700.00

Bank has not created investment adjustment reserve for the investment made in Nepal Clearing House and
Nepal Electronic Payment system as it not required. If investment is made of 51% or more in company which is
not to be listed as per the customary law and investment made in CIB Nepal, Nepal Clearing Housing Ltd. and
Nepal Electronic Payment System Ltd. then for such investment, investment adjustment reserve is not required
to be maintained.

Also, for the investment in company established for the modernization of payment system in Nepal through
Payment Switch amplified by the joint investment of minimum of 15 B/Fls, such reserve is not required.
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Moreover, bank has investment in Smart Choice Technologies Ltd. and Kumari Sunaulo Lagani Yojana which
has remained unlisted but not exceeded three years of date of investment as on reporting date. Hence, reserve
has not been created against such investment.

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total

4.28.1 Contingent liabilities

Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

4.28.2 Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Undisbursed amount of loans
Undrawn limits of overdrafts
Undrawn limits of credit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit
Undrawn limits of guarantee
Total

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

201,670,196.83
1,347,183,639.14

116,771,500.00
1,418,5657,271.84

1,548,853,835.97

1,535,328,771.84

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

201,670,196.83

116,771,500.00

201,670,196.83

116,771,500.00

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

41,850,000.00
1,267,699,639.14

37,634,000.00

69,396,000.00
1,349,161,271.84

1,347,183,639.14

1,418,557,271.84

4.28.3 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial

statements.
Amount in NPR
As at As at
16 July 2023 16 July 2022

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -

Sub total - -

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub total - -

Total - -
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4.28.4 Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub total
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub total
Grand total

As at

16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

All the operating lease entered by bank are cancellable by giving a notice period and the bank does not have any

finance lease commitment as on reporting date.

4.28.5 Litigation

Contingent Tax Liabilities-Income Tax

4.29 Interest income

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

Other

Total interest income

4.30 Interest expense

Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Borrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other

Total interest expense

Vo

As at
16 July 2023

Amount in NPR
As at
16 July 2022

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

73,527,389.01

483,571,962.12
5,962,733,419.12
509,653,699.00
94,281,885.55
3,698,698.65

70,705,719.15

467,961,097.09
4,716,157,091.31
245,750,161.83
42,370,745.94
1,952,410.97

7,127,467,053.45

5,544,897,226.29

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

103,390,297.99
6,451,506.80
5,090,276,245.06
21,851,863.60
67,781,831.50

46,090,498.98

94,230,734.95
3,629,543,133.07
15,819,379.05
67,757,878.45

46,303,617.04

5,335,842,243.93

3,853,654,742.57

qu 3 arftier ufqaes



4.31 Fees and Commission Income

Loan administration fees

Service fees

Consortium fees

Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees

Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees
Renewal Fees

Prepayment and swap fees

Investment banking fees

Asset management fees

Brokerage fees

Remittance fees

Commission on letter of credit

Commission on guarantee contracts issued
Commission on share underwriting/issue
Locker rental

Other fees and commission income

Total Fees and Commission Income

4.32 Fees and Commission Expense

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission

Other fees and commission expense
Total Fees and Commission Expense

433 Net trading income

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction
Other

Net trading income

(AT TG FhaTE @ TR T I AT

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

128,036,428.04

9,162,650.59

7,678,001.23

2,104,260.08

1,974,700.00
17,677,802.30

176,530,904.52

3,331,872.80

7,037,762.86

2,024,534.85

1,659,400.00
15,944,718.13

166,633,842.24

206,529,193.16

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

17,743,175.64

14,539,960.31

17,743,175.64

14,539,960.31

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
interests, dividends and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair value of trading
assets and liabilities are presented under this head. Bank does not have any income under this heading.
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Other operating income

Foreign exchange revaluation gain

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other

Total

Amount in NPR

Current Year Previous Year
910,499.31 1,354,739.44
(24,253.84) 13,922,037.26
963,490.59 2,921,702.27
(22,512.09) 1,609,319.46
1,827,223.97 19,807,798.43

Impairment charge/ (reversal) for loan and other losses

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to
customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and
financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Others Assets

Total

Personnel Expense

Salary

Allowances

Gratuity expense

Provident fund

Uniform

Training & development expense
Leave encashment

Medical

Insurance

Voluntary Retirement Expenses
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense

Finance expense under NFRS
Other expenses related to staff
Subtotal

Employees bonus

Grand total

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

(9,291,670.52)
542,747,258.43

53,431,332.36
103,995,577.84

2,526,087.55

533,455,587.91

159,952,997.75

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

213,725,004.00
226,822,129.04
18,044,747.32
21,374,936.00
8,699,298.00
13,137,955.81
18,003,424.23
4,802,387.51

4,257,141.21
3,187,185.90

200,863,308.00
237,068,551.51
17,756,968.52
21,225,337.33
48,442.09
8,155,295.80
13,844,249.67

3,339,121.26

539,563.19
3,527,278.91

532,054,209.02

506,368,116.28

43,907,492.83

82,282,896.04

575,961,701.85

588,651,012.32

Provision for staff bonus is a mandatory requirement under the requirement of the Bonus Act, 2030. All expenses
related to employees of a bank has been included under this head. Expenses covered under this head include
employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform
expenses, insurance, staff bonus, finance expense under NFRS, cash-settled share-based payments etc.
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4.38

Other operating expense

Directors' fee

Directors' expense

Auditors' remuneration

Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense

Office administration expense (4.37 A)

Operating expense of investment properties

Corporate social responsibility expense
Onerous lease provisions

Other

Total

(AT TG FhaTE @ TR T I )

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

1,535,500.00
705,232.30
1,493,000.00
37,101.11
1,088,258.89
284,473,076.49

1,201,500.00
795,428.22
1,163,900.00
545,570.00
947,505.00
268,610,459.26

4,249,365.65

289,332,168.79

277,513,728.13

All operating expenses other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented under this

account head. The expenses covered under this account head

includes office administration expense, other

operating and overhead expense, directors' remuneration and non-audit fee paid to auditors, professional and
legal expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of
non-financial assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc.

4.37

A Office administration expense

Water and electricity
Repair and maintenance
(a) Building
(b) Vehicle
(c) Computer and accessories
(d) Office equipment and furniture
(e) Other
Insurance
Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax
Printing, Stationery & Small Purchases
Newspaper, Books and Journals
Advertisement
Donation
Security Expenses
Deposit and loan guarantee premium
Travel Allowance & Expenses
Entertainment
Annual/special general meeting expense
Other
(a) Share Issue Expenses
(b) Miscellaneous Expenses
(c ) Annual Fee
(d) Office Expenses
(e ) Fuel & Gas
(f) House Rent
Total

Depreciation & Amortization

Depreciation on property and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Depreciation on Right of use assets
Amortization of intangible assets

Total

qu 3t arftie wfeaes

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

19,123,233.64

2,861,761.54
439,632.50
8,151,481.40
5,381,403.04
5,5633,240.95
3,634,730.60
16,866,650.06
114,900.13
20,098,437.69

48,123,227.55
18,912,215.63
7,168,723.95

2,849,632.63

581,040.41
20,037,584.32
2,717,334.90
50,521,607.52
10,174,696.68
41,181,541.35

17,629,353.43

2,687,912.34
284,441.72
6,236,602.10
4,601,421.52
3,306,039.39
4,838,654.32
18,480,202.82
143,411.75
23,622,251.22

53,979,461.01
13,888,202.68
8,496,482.41

1,767,149.85

2,012,122.02
11,398,965.88
989,126.36
51,791,288.43
7,831,234.63
34,626,135.38

284,473,076.49

268,610,459.26

Current Year

Amount in NPR
Previous Year

96,361,684.82

43,914,783.81
2,929,328.89

85,399,200.15

48,522,021.55
1,754,762.15

143,205,797.52

135,675,983.85
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4.39 Non-operating income
Amount in NPR

Current Year Previous Year
Recovery of loan written off - -
Other income 608,045.89 1,601,256.95
Total 608,045.89 1,601,256.95

The income that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions is presented under this head

4.40 Non-operating expense

Amount in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Redundancy provision
Expense of restructuring - -
Other expense 3,628,445.63 300,618.05
Total 5,828,054.39 2,300,985.52
The expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions is presented under this
head.
4.41 Income Tax Expenses
Amount in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Current tax expenses 134,335,715.65 218,871,301.35
Current year 134,335,715.65 218,871,301.35
Adjustment for prior years -
Deferred tax expenses (9,581,097.10) (5,498,899.92)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (9,581,097.10) (5,498,899.92)
Change in tax Rate
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses B B
124,754,618.56 213,372,401.42

Total Income Tax expense

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit is recognized and presented under this account head. This
account head includes current tax expense and deferred tax expense/deferred tax income.

4.41.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Amountin NPR
Current Year Previous Year

Profit before tax 395,167,435.52 740,546,064.37
Tax amount at tax rate of 30 % 118,550,230.66 222,163,819.31
tAatidF:)l];?))é:;fect of expenses that are not deductible for 6.178,126.88 3,355,049.30
Less: Tax effect on exempt income 289,047.18 (32,064.68)
Add/Less: Tax effect on other items (262,786.16) (12,114,402.51)
Total income tax expense 124,754,618.56 213,372,401.42
Effective tax rate 31.57% 28.81%
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5.1. Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Bank has set clear separation between businesses function and risk management function.
Accordingly, the Bank has set up a separate Risk Management & Compliance Department. The department oversees the risk that
arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Top Management, Risk
Management Committee and the Board to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

> Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank and is responsible to frame and implement robust policies and
framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued by the regulatory authority. BOD ensures the strategies,
policies and procedure is in accordance with the risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective management of risk within the Bank. The
board understands the nature of risk of the bank, and periodically reviews reports on risk management, including policies and
standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through the reporting by the Risk Management Committee and the Asset-
Liabilities Management Committee.

» Risk Governance

Bank has prepared and implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the bank and has
inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job
responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise
directly through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal
consequence of any business undertaking.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and compliance with, policies relating to management
risk, supply risk, production risk, demand risk and collection risk.

The bank’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the banks risk blanket is cascaded
down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior management and committees. Information regarding
material risk issues and compliance with policies and standards is communicated through the business, functional, senior
management and committees.

> Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank has appropriate internal control framework in place that supports the achievement
of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the Bank should be looked upon with a view to establish a proper control
mechanism is in place during expansion and growth which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or
reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance
resilience to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/ monitoring, in line with
the NRB Directives has effectively implemented the same at the Bank.

» Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of counterparty to meet its contractual
obligations to pay the Bank in accordance with agreed terms. The Credit Risk Monitoring and Reporting Framework/ have been
prepared in order to mitigate/ minimize the credit risk of the Bank through appropriate monitoring and reporting framework
established within the Bank.

Bank has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective management of Credit Risk. For the
purpose of assessment of credit risk of the bank, following activities were carried out:

< Current system/policies/procedures/guidelines formulated were gone through;

% Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment wise were checked against Risk Appetite, tolerance limit mentioned

in Respective Product Paper Guidelines, Credit Policy and Credit Risk Management Policy;

% Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such as Account Monitoring Report, Loan Overdue Report, Loan
Report, NRB reports and Margin Monitoring Reports.

» Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a bank resulting from movements in market prices, in particular, changes in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, and equity and commodity prices. Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on and off-balance sheet positions
arising from movements in market prices. The risks subject to this requirement are as follows:
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» Currency Risk:

5.2.

1)

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to
suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting
currency.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that a company or bank may be unable to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to
the inability to convert a security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the process. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Bank might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due, as a result of
mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding
needed for liquid asset positions is not available to the Bank on acceptable terms.

Capital Management

The Bank manages its capital to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs considering the risks in its business.
For the purpose of effective management of the capital the bank has formulated and implemented the Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Procedure (ICAAP) which encompasses policies, processes and methodologies to determine the adequate level of
capitalization for the Bank to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs under normal as well and under stress
scenarios. The board of directors on the frequent interval monitor the capital adequacy position and the risk weighted assets and
take a necessary steps as appropriate
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SHANGRI-LA DEVELOPMENT BANK LTD.
DISCLOSURE UNDER BASEL II
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The extract presented hereunder is as per disclosure requirement of Capital Adequacy Framework 2007 (Updated 2008) as issued by Nepal Rastra Bank
for the period ended 31 Ashad 2080 (16™ July 2023).

1. CAPITAL STRUCTURE & CAPITALADEQUACY
i. Core Capital (Tier I)

iii.

iv.

vi.

Particulars

Amount (in '000)

Paid up Equity Share Capital

3,267,591.72

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares

Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

664,731.48

Retained Earnings

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss)

202,296.59

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized

<|lg|=|e = |o|B |—=|F[—|=|5 |—|0o |[x]|0 ||

Less: Other Deductions

Total Core Capital (Tier I)

4,134,619.79

i. Supplementary Capital (Tier II)

Particulars Amount (in '000)

a Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share -
b Subordinated Term Debt 750,000.00
c Hybrid Capital Instruments -
d General loan loss provision 572,233.64
e Exchange Equalization Reserve 826.71
f Investment Adjustment Reserve -
g Asset Revaluation Reserve -
h Other Reserves -

Total Supplementary Capital (Tier 1I) 1,323,060.35

Total Qualifying Capital

Particulars Amount (in '000)
a Total Core Capital (Tier I) 4,134,619.79
b Total Supplementary Capital (Tier II) 1,323,060.35
Total Capital Fund (Tier I + Tier II) 5,457,680.14
Capital Adequacy ratio
a Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 9.40%
b Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 12.41%

. Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and future activities

Assessment of capital adequacy of bank on regular basis taking into considerations the exposure of bank. Also the analysis of possible impact on
capital adequacy is being done on regular basis taking into consideration the future impacts on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of bank and
impact in capital due to future change in nature and size of business is discussed in Risk Management Committee and is summarized in board.
Regular monitoring of nature of business is being done so that unexpected negative impact could not take place in capital adequacy of bank.

Reporting to regulatory body is being done as prescribed by compliance department.

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in case of subordinated term debts including
hybrid capital instruments.
Not Applicable
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2. RISK EXPOSURE
i. Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit, Market and Operational Risk

fii.

iv.

Particulars Amount (in '000)
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 39,714,977.27
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 2,414,253.36
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 12,539.60

Total Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit, Market and Operational Risk

42,141,770.23

ii. Risk Weighted Exposures under each Categories of Credit Risk

Particulars

Amount (in '000)

a Claims on government and central Bank -

b Claims on other official entities -

[ Claims on Banks 1,167,815.25

d Claims on corporate and securities firms 8,789,369.38

[S Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 11,001,334.91

f Claims secured by residential properties 3,974,709.31

g Claims secured by commercial real estate -

h Past due claims (except for claim secured by residential properties) 2,464,474.67

i High risk claims 9,619,030.16

] Lending Against Securities (Bonds & Shares) -

k Lending Against Shares(upto Rs. 2.5 Million) 153,046.24

1 Investment in Equity and other capital instruments of institutions 746,434.93

n Staff Loan secured by residential properties 442,849.02

0 Other Assets 938,067.40

p Off Balance sheet items 417,846.01
Total Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk 39,714,977.27

Risk Weighted Exposure Calculation table

Particulars

Amount (in '000)

39,714977.27

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 2,414,253.36
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 12,539.60
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar IT) 42,141,770.23
Adjustments under Pillar II
a ALM policies & practices are not satisfactory, add 1% of net interest income to RWE -
b Add .....% of the total deposit due to insufficient Liquid Assets -
c Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3% of gross income 575,273.84
d Opverall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 3% of RWE 1,264,253.11
e If desired level of disclosure requirement has not been achieved, Add .....% of RWE -

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II)

43,981,297.18

Amount of NPA's (Both Gross and Net)

Amount (in '000)

Particulars Gross Amount Loan Loss Provision Net Amount
a Restructured/Reschedule Loan - - -

b Substandard Loan 190,145.31 40,175.61 149,969.70

[ Doubtful Loan 537,922.91 248,347.70 289,575.21

e Loss Loan 602,373.19 592,454.28 9,918.90

Total 1,330,441.41 880,977.60 449,463.80
v. NPA Ratios Amount (in '000)
Particulars Gross/Net NPA Gross/Net Advances %
Gross NPA to Gross loan and Advances 1,330,441.41 42,151,268.37 3.16%
Net NPA to Net loan and Advances 449,463.80 40,692,920.30 1.10%

vi. Movement of Non - Performing Assets Amount (in '000)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Movement
a Restructured/Reschedule Loan - - -
b Substandard Loan 190,145.31 144,245.00 45,900.31
[ Doubtful Loan 537,922.91 340,568.00 197,354.91
d Loss Loan 602,373.19 117,906.00 484,467.19
Total 1,330,441.41 602,719.00 727,722.41
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ix.

. Movement of Loan Loss Provision
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Amount (in '000)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Movement

a |Loan Loss Provision

1,458,348.07

924,892.48

533,455.59

Movement of Interest Suspense

Amount (in '000)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Movement

a [Interest Suspense

504,478.29

283,678.47

220,799.82

Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense

Amount (in '000)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Movement
a Write off of Loan 2,199.61 2,000.37 199.24
b Write off of Interest - - -
Total 2,199.61 2,000.37 199.24
x. Investment Portfolio
Particulars Amount (in '000)
a Held for maturity 8,280,472.40
Held for trading -
c Available for sale 739,830.81

3. RISK MANAGEMENT FUNCTION
The bank is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its business activities. Management is
ultimately responsible to the Board for the Bank's system of internal controls and risk management. In order to enhance efficiency and effective
internal control Bank has established the Internal Audit Department. The internal audit of the Bank’s branches and departments are carried out
on regular basis.

. Credit Risk

=

Bank has put in place a standard procedure regarding documentation procedure, loan appraisal and approval procedure, delegation of authority
to different level, disbursement mechanism, monitoring of loans and advances and recovery. Bank has separate Credit Control Unit (CCU)
through which the loans are being disbursed irrespective the loan sanctioning authority level. CCU has played vital role in internal check system.

ii. Operation Risk
In order to minimize operational risk, bank has been following its operational manual strictly along with NRB Directives and circulars. In
addition to strengthen internal control of the bank, internal audit of branches and departments are being conducted in quarterly basis. Further
bank has put in place the practice of monthly system review system and daily MIS system for timely information of position bank and detection
of errors. Bank has been using various risk mitigating tools like insurance, data back — up, training of staffs etc. Bank has framed AML/ CFT
policy to comply with the provisions of NRB and Nepal Government related to AML.

iii. Market Risk
Market risk related to interest rate, stock price are being monitored closely by management and discussions are being held in risk management
committee in frequent basis.

iv. Credit Risk Mitigants (CRM)
Eligible CRM benefits availed.

Particulars Amount (in '000)
a Deposits with Bank 753,298.20
b Gold 126,687.73
Total 879,985.93
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5.4. Operating Segment Information
l. General Information

An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur
expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank’s other components, whose operating
results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources allocated to each segment
and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available

Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified four reporting segment
for the purpose of financial reporting:

a. Core Banking

This segment covers various generalized products and services of the Banks. All deposit accounts (Saving, Current, Call & Fixed)
and Loans provided to Institutional and Individual customers are classified under this segment. The interest income and other fee
incomes generated out of such loans are revenue items of this segment.

b. Treasury

Treasury function of the bank manages the liquidity on the branch level and of the banks as a whole. The fund invested in
government bond, treasury bills, placement and shares of other organizations are classified under this segment. The interest
income of bonds and bills, forex gains, dividend income are revenue items of this segment. Expenses of this segment comprises
of interest expenses on deposits used for making investments.

c. Digital Banking

This segment covers both domestic remittance and foreign inwards remittance facility served with a purpose to provide complete
remittance solution to the valued customers of the Bank.

Major sources of revenue of the segment are income from remittance, Mobile Banking, Internet Banking, Fee, and income from
remittances, ATM Card issue and renewal fee etc.

d. Other Component

All other revenue and expenses which cannot be classified to the above mentioned segment fall under this segment. The income
from sale of assets, Locker Charges, Agency Commission, Insurance Commission, other fees and commission are classified
under this segment.
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IV. Reconciliation of reportable revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

a. Revenue

Particulars

Amount in NPR

Total revenue for reportable segment

7,295,928,119.66

Other Revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity’s revenues

7,295,928,119.66

b. Profit orloss

Particulars

Amount in NPR

Total revenue for reportable segment

1,648,419,012.00

Other Profit or loss

Elimination of intersegment Profit

Unallocated amount

Profit before income tax

1,648,419,012.00

c. Assets

Particulars

Amount in NPR

Total assets for reportable segment

58,649,961,444.08

Other assets

Unallocated assets

Entity’s assets

58,649,961,444.08

d. Liabilities

Particulars

Amount in NPR

Total Liabilities for reportable segment

54,166,104,125.24

Other Liabilities

Unallocated Liabilities

Entity’s assets

54,166,104,125.24

V. Information about products and services
Particulars Amount in NPR
Core Banking 6,574,341,809.28
Treasury 585,030,824.07
Digital Banking 38,874,580.63
Others 97,680,905.68
Total 7,295,928,119.66

5.5. Share Option and Share Based Payment

The Bank does not extend the share options and share based paymentto any of its employees. Thus, duringthe reporting period the
bank does not have any the transactions that are to be accounted as per NFRS 2 “Share-based Payments.

5.6. Contingent liabilities and commitment

Contingent Liabilities

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued for which an obligation to make

a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Commitment

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans,
overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those

instruments are included in these financial statements as commitments.

Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.28
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5.7. Related Party Disclosures

l. List of related party
Directors and Key Management Personnel of the bank has been identified as Related Parties for Bank under NAS 24.

Name of Related Party Designation Date of Appointment End of Tenure
Mr. Ujjwal Satyal Chairman Appointed on 17" Chaitra 2079
Mr. Achyut Prasad Prasai Chairman Appointed on 30" Poush 2075 17" Chaitra 2079
Mr. Ganga Sagar Dhakal Director Re-appointed on 17" Chaitra 2079
Mr. Naresh Man Tuladhar Director Appointed on 9" Poush 2076 17" Chaitra 2079
Mr. Sushil Kaji Baniya Director Re-appointed on 17" Chaitra 2079
Ms. Lisa Sherchan Director Re-Appointed on 17" Chaitra 2079
Mr. Raju Nath Khanal Director Appointed on 26" Shrawan 2076 | 24" Shrawan 2080
Mr. Nitish Gupta Director Appointed on 25 Ashoj 2078 17 Chaitra 2079
Mr. Sujan Siddhi Bajracharya Director Appointed on 17" Chaitra 2079
Mr. Naresh Dhungana Director Appointed on 17" Chaitra 2079
Mr. Suyog Shrestha CEO Re-appointed on 18" Bhadra 2079
Il Related Party Transactions
Board of Director Allowance are as follows:
As at 16 July 2023
Particulars No of Meetings Allowance
Board Meeting 28 1,295,000.00
Audit Committee Meeting 9 117,000.00
Risk Management Committee 5 65,000.00
Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee 4 26,000.00
Employee Service Benefit Committee 5 32,500.00
Total 51 1,535,500.00

Key Managerial Personnel’s Salary and Facilities are as follows

As at 16 July 2023
Particulars Chief Executive Officer
Salary 5,407,124.00
Allowance 3,542,813.00
Dashain Allowance 805,600.00
Provident Fund 540,713.00
Others 108,956.00
Total 10,405,206.00

*Staff Bonus is not included in above disclosure and is paid as per Bonus Act 2030.
*Above mentioned remuneration is subject to deduction of tax and net cash receipt is NPR 7,260,844.

5.8. Merger and Acquisition

The Bank has neither entered into merger not acquired any bank and financial institutions during the reporting period.
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5.9. Unpaid Dividend

The following unpaid dividend amount has remained outstanding as at the reporting date:

Financial Year Unclaimed Dividend (Amount in NPR)

FY 2067/68 602,300.00
FY 2068/69 1,161,099.50
FY 2069/70 2,511,001.64
FY 2070/71 1,927,392.19
FY 2073/74 8,730,293.97
FY 2074/75 5,751,232.77
FY 2075/76 11,014,013.81
TOTAL 31,697,333.89

*Bank has transferred divided payable to NIMB Ace Capital Limited except for NPR 210,363.84 mentioned on 4.23 Other Liabilities.
5.10. Events after reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting date and the date
when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

All material and important events that occurred after the reporting date have been considered and appropriate disclosures have
been made in line with NAS 10 — “Events after the Reporting Period”.

a. Recovery of Interest after year end and upto Shrawan 15, 2080

Nepal Rastra Bank Directives requires the Bank and Financial Institutions to transfer the equivalent amount of interest on loans
and advances accounted as an interest income under the accrual basis of accounting but not recovered as on reporting period to
the Regulatory Reserve from the Retained Earnings. However, the same Directives has relaxed this provision with which Bank
may not transfer such amount in case it is recovered within the 15 days after the year end, i.e 15" Shrawan 2080.

The Bank has realized accrued interest income of NPR 51,307,432.94 till 15" Shrawan 2080. Bank has transferred NPR
32,323,682.75 (Net off Staff Bonus and Tax) from Regulatory Reserve to Retained earnings.

5.11. Non-Banking Assets

Non-Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by the Bank in the
course of loan recovery. Bank possesses non-banking assets of NPR 124,315,928.20 as on reporting date.

5.12. Comparative Figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions

Derivative financial instruments
Other trading assets
Loan and advances to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Current tax assets

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates
Investment property

Property and equipment
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Debt securities issued
Subordinated Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity
holders
Non-controlling interest

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Contingent liabilities and
commitment
Net assets value per share

Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Comparison of Unaudited Interim Statement of Financial Position and
Audited Statement of Financial Position

As on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Unaudited SOFP

4,200,390,508.60
2,034,451,834.21

2,225,366,025.31
40,107,203,568.10

9,019,875,293.88
33,499,601.66

124,315,928.20
704,286,434.13
10,336,995.97
46,546,193.77

226,246,955.48

58,732,519,339.32

1,941,704,603.25

50,567,721,865.54

920,802,181.60
746,567,409.80

54,176,796,060.19

3,267,591,716.72

248,954,218.05
1,039,177,344.35

4,555,723,279.12

4,555,723,279.12

58,732,519,339.32
1,5648,853,835.97
139.42

Audited SOFP

4,200,418,657.77
2,034,451,834.21

2,225,366,025.31
39,861,312,180.28

9,020,303,210.58
64,484,139.78

124,315,928.20
704,286,434.13
10,336,994.97
46,418,693.77

358,267,345.08

58,649,961,444.08

1,941,704,603.25

50,567,721,865.54

910,110,246.64
746,567,409.80

54,166,104,125.24

3,267,591,716.72

202,296,590.48
1,013,969,011.65

4,483,857,318.84

4,483,857,318.84

58,649,961,444.08
1,5648,853,835.97
137.22

Variance

Amount

(28,149.17)

245,891,387.82

(427,916.70)
(30,984,538.11)

1.00
127,500.00

(132,020,389.61)

82,557,895.24

10,691,934.96

10,691,934.96

46,657,627.57
25,208,332.70

71,865,960.28

71,865,960.28

82,557,895.23

2.20

-92.49%

-58.35%

Reasons for
Variance

%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

Staff
Amortization
Adjustment.

Loan
0.61%

0.00%
Final Tax calculation.
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.27%

Staff
Amortization
Adjustment.

Loan

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
1.16%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
18.74%
2.43%
1.58%

0.00%
1.58%
0.00%
0.14%

Effect of change in
profit

0.00%
1.58%
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Comparison of Unaudited Interim Statement of Profit or Loss and Audited Statement of Profit or Loss

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income
Net trading income

Other operating income

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and
other losses

Net operating income

Operating expense

Personnel expenses

Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation
Operating Profit
Non-operating income
Non-operating expense
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax Income / Expenses
Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

qu 3t arftfe wfeaes

As on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Unaudited SOPL

7,139,279,552.43
5,335,119,430.93
1,804,160,121.50
166,633,842.24
17,743,175.64
148,890,666.60
1,953,050,788.10

3,463,948.41

1,956,514,736.51
435,685,295.75

1,520,829,440.76

583,119,307.60

289,332,168.79
143,205,797.52
505,172,166.85
608,045.89
5,828,054.39
499,952,158.35

156,230,174.00

165,320,253.77
(9,090,079.76)
343,721,984.35

343,721,984.35

343,721,984.35

10.52
10.52

Audited SOPL

7,127,467,053.45
5,335,842,243.93
1,791,624,809.52
166,633,842.24
17,743,175.64
148,890,666.60
1,940,515,476.12

1,827,223.97

1,942,342,700.09
533,455,587.91

1,408,887,112.18

575,961,701.85

289,332,168.79
143,205,797.52
400,387,444.02
608,045.89
5,828,054.39
395,167,435.52

124,754,618.56

134,335,715.65
(9,581,097.10)
270,412,816.96

270,412,816.96

270,412,816.96

8.28
8.28

Variance

Amount
11,812,498.98
(722,813.00)
12,535,311.98

12,535,311.98

1,636,724.44

14,172,036.42
(97,770,292.16)

111,942,328.58

7,157,605.75

104,784,722.83

104,784,722.83
31,475,555.45

30,984,538.11
491,017.33
73,309,167.39

73,309,167.39

73,309,167.39

2.24
2.24

%
0.17%
-0.01%
0.69%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.64%
0.00%

47.25%

0.72%

-22.44%

7.36%

1.23%

0.00%
0.00%
20.74%
0.00%
0.00%
20.96%

20.15%
18.74%

21.33%

21.33%

21.33%

21.33%
21.33%

Reclassification of gain
on sale of investment

to reserve as per
NFRS 9

Additional provision of

Statutory audit and

NRB.

Effect of change in

profit

Effect of change in

profit
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Comparison of Unaudited Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income and Audited Statement of Comprehensive Income
As on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

. Reasons for
Variance .
Variance

Unaudited SOCI Audited SOCI

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss

Gains/(losses) from investments in  equity
instruments measured at fair value

Gain/(loss) on revaluation

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit
or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating
financial assets of foreign operation)

Income tax relating to above items

Reclassification of Profit/Loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of
associate accounted as per equited method
Other comprehensive income for the period, net
of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the year

(44

343,721,984.35

56,661,481.48

(16,998,444 .44)
39,663,037.04

39,663,037.04
383,385,021.38

383,385,021.38

383,385,021.38

270,412,816.96

58,723,205.92

(17,616,961.78)
41,106,244.14

41,106,244.14
311,519,061.11

311,519,061.11

311,519,061.11

Amount

73,309,167.39

(2,061,724.44)

618,517.33
(1,443,207.11)

(1,443,207.11)
71,865,960.28

71,865,960.28

71,865,960.28

%

21.33%

-3.64%

-3.64%
-3.64%

-3.64%
18.75%

18.75%

18.75%

Effect of
change in
profit

Reclassification
of gain on sale
of investment to
reserve as per
NFRS 9
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3. #1 IBS (Individual Bank Supervisor) Officer.

PRZEICE
. UEEES
ﬂ 5
1 [
P.0.Box: 20200, KMC-4, Baluwatar, Kathmandu, Nepal

Tel:01-4421861, 4421862, Fax: 01-4421766, Email : info@shangrilabank.com, URL: www.shangrilabank. com
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Product & Services

Shangri-la Uchhattam Bachat Khata
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This product is a specially designed for saving
purpose to every individual with the highest interest
return which has the benefit of Insurance (medicall
claim and accidental Claim), 50% Discount on
Locker Rental Charge.

Shangri-la Kramik Bachat Khata

It is a unique recurring product which minimum
balance is of NPR 1000.00 of the figure divisible by
100 for 36 months and in return customer gets lup
sum equivalent to 42 months.
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Shangri-la Swarnim Nari Bachat Khata
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This product is especially designed savings
product tailored specifically for female with high
and attractive interest return in this competitive
market with the additional Insurance benefit.

Shangri-la Sunaulo remitance Khata

Heiten MicAarea aaa @idn
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Shangri-la Sunaulo Remittance Khata is a specific
interest-bearing saving product designed to solicit
deposit accounts of the Nepalese people engaged
in Foreign Employment and of their family
members who are receiving remittance through
various remittance channels.
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Shangri-la
Customer Care Center

If you have any queries, complaints or suggestions regarding our services,
please contact us at the number below:

Toll Free Number: Phone Number: For Messaging:
£31810-50-00052 3015970052 ® 9863589000
Email ID:

customercare@shangrilabank.com





